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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue was
approximately RMB233,945,000 (2020: approximately
RMB134,441,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
74.0%.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, gross profit was
approximately RMB38,875,000 (2020: approximately
RMB31,599,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
23.0%.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
net loss of approximately RMB2,600,000 (2020: a net loss of
approximately RMB3,157,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, basic loss per share of
the Company was RMBO0.23 cents (2020 basic loss per share:
RMBO0.33 cents).

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

To all shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Sunlight
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “"Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

2021 has been a challenging year under the spread of
COVID-19 pandemic and the unstable political environment
across the world. Various countries have implemented
stringent anti-pandemic measures, thus severely restricting
logistics flows and leading to the global trade stagnation.
With the sluggish demand for living and production, the
global economy has recorded negative growth, as well as
rising instability and uncertainty. The global macroeconomic
environment has become complex, challenging and difficult.
As the domestic economic growth has been softening, the
tasks of maintaining growth and maintaining employment
have been arduous. Affected by the inflexible environmental
protection and safety regulations, the world awash with
US dollars, and massive economic rescue packages, certain
raw material prices have increased significantly. Enterprises
have faced unprecedented challenges and difficulties. The
nationwide polyurethane synthetic leather industry has been
obviously differentiated and, therefore the industry integration
has entered a period of intensive adjustment.

Faced with the severe impacts of the complex and volatile
domestic and foreign business environment, especially the
COVID-19 epidemic, the Group has worked together to
cope with the difficulties and strive to stand against it. We
have made unremitting efforts for the Group’s survival and
development. In 2021, the Group's business recorded an
increase and expansion, while the quality of development has
been improved. With our simultaneous works of introducing
of brand, innovation, intelligent manufacturing, and effective
management, we have further enhanced our corporate
development effectiveness, comprehensive strength, brand
image and social influence.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had and continued to
enhance the following competitive advantages: (i) the Group
is an established and active market player in the faux leather
chemicals manufacturing industry in the PRC and its successful
listing has enhanced its brand influence; (i) the Group has
strong research and development capabilities which allow it to
offer a wide spectrum of portfolio of products; (iii) the Group
has established long-term business relationship with our major
customers and suppliers, which enables the Group to explore
more diversified cooperation and development; and (iv) the
Group has an experienced management team with prominent
industry expertise, which is enhanced through the continuous
introduction of new teams for maintaining its sophistication.
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The Group will continue to vigorously develop its various
businesses. The Group aims to maintain the sustainable growth
of our business and strengthen our market position in the faux
leather chemicals manufacturing industry. Looking forward
to 2022, the gradual recovery of the global economy will
bring new opportunities to the whole industry. To this end,
the Group will continue to adopt the following strategies:
(i) further expanding the production capacity for colourant
products; (ii) continuing to strengthen our research and
development capabilities and further expanding our product
portfolio and geographical coverage; and (iii) enhancing
automation of our existing production facility and information
management system. We also look for opportunities to expand
the business scope and broaden the income stream of the
Group. We foresee that the negative impact caused by the
COVID-19 epidemic, which has been spreading across the
world, will not be eliminated within short period of time, and
repeated outbreaks will occur in various countries. Depending
on the future development of COVID-19 subsequent to the
date of these financial results, further changes in the financial
position of the Group may arise, which may have an impact
on the financial results of the Group. Despite the difficulties
ahead, the Group will continue to monitor the development
of COVID-19 and actively assess its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group from time to time,
while making its utmost efforts to minimize the impact.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to express my gratitude to all employees,
shareholders and business partners of the Group. The Group
will seize the opportunities to venture into the future and
continue to create long-term value for shareholders and
society.

LIU Jing
Chairman
Hangzhou, PRC, 29 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNwWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group’s Overall Business and Financial
Performance

We are an established faux leather chemicals manufacturer in
the PRC principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of coating agents and synthetic resins
under our own brand.

During the Reporting Period, the global novel coronavirus
pandemic (COVID-19) continued to be volatile. The global
economic environment remained complex and challenging under
various uncertainties. With the joint efforts of all countries,
vaccination was gradually carried out. The downstream industries
and consumer demand among various industries has been
recovered. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue
increased by approximately RMB99,504,000 or 74.0% from
approximately RMB134,441,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB233,945,000. However, the whole
industry has been constrained by various factors, such as the
significant price increase in several upstream raw materials and
the expected negative impact of the volatile development of
global pandemic. Hence, the outlook remains challenging.

The Group's gross profit increased by RMB7,276,000 or 23.0%
from approximately RMB31,599,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB38,875,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the Company took proactive
measures to cope with the complicated and volatile
macroeconomic environment. Internally, the Company
strengthened its cost management, such as improving
work efficiency, reducing unnecessary expenses and timely
adjustment of the inventory level in respond to the upstream
and downstream markets. At the same time, the Group has
launched an orderly management informatization and production
automation transformation. During the year, business modules
of the Group have been integrated into the Kingdee Cloud
(& =) system, which was a cornerstone for our digital
development. Externally, our production and business operation
plans has been adjusted in light of market changes in a timely
manner. The Group has vigorously promoted its production and
sale of colour chips, as well as conducting strategic cooperation
intensively with water-based material manufacturers. In respect of
research and development, we have proactively raised the level of
software and hardware in our research and development centers,
thus increasing the capacity of research and development for our
products, including surface treatment agent, synthetic resins and
water-based resins for creating multi-purpose products tirelessly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNwWR DM

Our Business Strategies and Future Prospects

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to enhance its
overall competitiveness and market share by strengthening
its premium long-term relationship with existing customers,
proactively developing new customers, continuing to
strengthen its research and development capabilities and
further expanding our product portfolio and geographical
coverage. The Group will continue to expand the research and
development center, promote the development and sales of
products, such as finishes, synthetic resins, and water-based
resins, keep improving our products and customer service-
oriented management system, while actively promoting the
production automation and informatization, so as to lay a
foundation for long-term development.

In view of the worldwide spread of the epidemic caused by
the COVID-19 since January 2020, the short-term sluggish
situation coupled with the escalating geopolitical tensions that
led to uncertain global economic outlook, the Group expects
the business environment in the near future will be under
increasing challenges.

Despite the difficulties ahead, the Group has been actively
seeking opportunities to expand the business scope and
broaden the income stream of the Group. In December 2021,
the Company entered into a memorandum of understanding
(the "MOU") with Hunan Jinkai Culture Communication
Company Limited* (& LEZERREMEART) and
Jiangxi Zhongniang Wine Industry Company Limited* (JI7
FEEBE G AR]), pursuant to which the parties intend
to establish a company in the PRC of which the business
scope includes the production and sales of food and beverage
products and engaged in production and sales of traditional
Chinese yellow wine and white wine products owned
beneficially by the Group as to 70%. As at the date of this
report, the MOU has not been materialised.

With the experienced management team, innovative strategies
and solid track record of the Group, the Group will be fully
prepared for sustainable and healthy development among
such challenging external business environment. The Group
will closely monitor changes in the economic environment, so
as to evaluate its business strategies to cope with the market
challenges in a timely manner, ensure the Group’s sustainable
and steady development and grasp opportunities to enhance
its long-term growth potential in the future, as well as to
safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

AT B9 S H SRBE B R R AT =

RERK AEEHBEZERERFEK
HEFEER BEREHETP EE MR
MEEHRE-—FPERARMPANERES R
WwHEERE BERAEBRBEF N
BAT SN - NEBE K @B REHED
O SEFHRIMER  HERERH - &K
WfE KRR S EMMEMBEE AT
EUEMMEFP R SR ONEREHE
Z RANESEELEADERERE B
RHSERETER-

B R COVID-195 A& 1B 520209 1H
MESKER  BRBRNEFENTIS
MEMGEBOAB B EEER  2EREER
ST AREEETHOKCLERE
755 TN G 2R K A Bk B8, o

EEMERE AEENEGRSREBE
BAAGEXRGHEMARBRARIR R
20214F12 8 - RA R B € & X EHE
BEREERARMIATBAERAR AR
YRR B TR BN F
B —RAA R AR EBSHEBREEE
FHERMMABER N EERHET
BonEBlABER HAEBEESHR
70% - N E B HY - SR AR 0 = 8 0 KR

o

BRELREENEIEEE B3 K MR
REVEARE  NEBSIES2EME 3k
BHRMNIIMERREDHERRER
AEBERE IR LBERTE(C TR
HEXGREABREMHAB BEASK
ERFERSER TIEE#KERSHARER
HIRRE S REARQFRRE ([RER])F

s
S o
N

RENKERERAT —T-—FFH

9



10

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue increased by RMB99,504,000 or 74.0% from
approximately RMB134,441,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB233,945,000. It was
attributable to the increase in revenue from various products,
among which, both price and volume sold from colour paste,
colour chips and synthetic resin products were increased.

In 2020 and 2021, revenue from colour paste accounted for
approximately 33.3% and approximately 38.5%, respectively,
of total revenue; revenue from colour chips accounted for
approximately 20.6% and approximately 21.5%, respectively,
of total revenue; revenue from finishes accounted for
approximately 28.0% and approximately 22.4%, respectively,
of total revenue; revenue from additives accounted for
approximately 3.3% and approximately 7.2%, respectively,
of total revenue; and revenue from synthetic resins of the
Group accounted for approximately 14.8% and approximately
10.4%, respectively, of total revenue.

The Group mainly sells its products to customers in the PRC.
Most of the revenue of the Group was derived from sales
in the PRC, which accounted for approximately 98.3% and
98.1%, respectively, of its total revenue for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by approximately RMB92,228,000 or
89.7% from approximately RMB102,842,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB195,070,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
increase in cost of raw materials and also increase of product
sold.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group'’s gross profit increased by RMB7,276,000 or 23.0%
from approximately RMB31,599,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB38,875,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Gross profit margin decreased to
16.6% for the year ended 31 December 2021 from 23.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in gross
profit margin was mainly due to the increase in raw material
costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

Other revenue

Other revenue mainly represented government grants and
bank interest income. The Group’s other revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB2,824,000,
while other revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately RMB4,234,000. The change was mainly
due to the decrease in government grants received and bank
interest income during the Reporting Period.

Other gains and losses

The other gains increased by approximately RMB1,980,000
or from approximately RMB965,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB2,945,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the increase in net
exchange gain.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately RMB8,252,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,124,000 or
15.8% from approximately RMB7,128,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the increase in overall sales
revenue.

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021 accounted for 3.5% (2020: approximately
5.3%) of the revenue of the Group.

Administrative and general expenses

Administrative and general expenses for the year ended
31 December 2021 were approximately RMB23,889,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB4,515,000 or
23.3% from approximately RMB19,374,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase in administrative and general
expenses was mainly due to the increase in professional
services fees for engaging intermediaries after the listing of the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Administrative and general expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021 accounted for 10.2% (2020: approximately
14.4%) of the revenue of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

Finance costs

Finance costs were approximately RMB nil for the year
ended 31 December 2021 as compared to approximately
RMB486,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Income tax expenses

Zhejiang Sunlight, a subsidiary of the Company in Mainland
China, is recognised as a High and New Technology Enterprise
and entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the PRC
Enterprise Income tax. Income tax expense was approximately
RMB1,124,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing an increase of approximately RMB755,000 or
204.6% as compared to approximately RMB369,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Loss for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
a net loss of approximately RMB2,600,000, as compared to a
net loss of approximately RMB3,157,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020. The loss was mainly due to loss on investment
in financial assets, further details are disclosed in the section of
“Investments” in this report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current assets were
approximately RMB194,073,000, mainly comprising cash and
bank balances (including pledged bank deposits), inventories
and trade and bills receivables and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately RMB33,725,000,
RMB31,276,000, RMB90,357,000 and RMB36,262,000
respectively.

Current liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB43,048,000, of which RMB38,011,000 were trade and
bills payables.

The current ratio (the ratio of current assets to current
liabilities) decreased from approximately 6.57 times as at
31 December 2020 to approximately 4.51 times as at 31
December 2021. The change in current ratio was mainly due to
increase in bills payables of approximately RMB17,593,000 at
the year end date.

As at 31 December 2021 or the date of this report, the Group
had no other debt financing commitments, nor was it in
breach of any financial covenant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

Capital expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s capital expenditure
was approximately RMB35,924,000, representing an increase
of RMB15,371,000 as compared to that of RMB20,553,000
in the prior year. Capital expenditure for the Reporting Period
mainly relates to the construction for the new production plant
of the Group in order to cope with the increasing demand
of our colour paste products. The new production plant is
expected to be completed in the coming two years in stages.
Certain part of the new production plant has been completed
and has been put into production during the Reporting Period.

Capital commitment

The capital commitments not provided for in the condensed
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020 were RMB7,213,000 and RMB11,486,000
respectively, which represented the purchase of plant and
machinery contracts.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio is the ratio of net debt divided by total equity
as at 31 December 2021. Net debt is calculated as total debt
net of cash and cash equivalents. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group recorded a net cash position (31 December 2020:
recorded a net cash position) and hence, no gearing ratio is
computed for both years.

Capital structure

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on
the Stock Exchange on 12 March 2020 and 250,000,000
shares were issued at a price of HKD0.52 per share. As at 31
December 2021, the Company had a total of 1,200,000,000
ordinary shares with a par value of US$0.0005 each in issue
(31 December 2020: 1,000,000,000 Shares).

BEARMAX

RAREH AEBEAATHAEARE
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A F BB AREEELIEERE AR
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ANEE -

BEREE

7202112 A31H &2020F12A318 %
NGRS BEREFIERENERNEED
A AEANRET7213F TR ARKEI,486F
T RBEREREREEDN-

BEAREGELER

R2021F12831H EABEBHERAEEB
FHEBRAREEML R - ERFEIRR
BEERRERESEEBYTE -R2021F
12A3318 AL B &5 F R & MR (2020
F12A318 B FHESAMMN) - WA EH
WMEFEFEEEAG/EXR-

BAREE
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On 22 March 2021, the Company and a placing agent
(the “Placing Agent”) entered into the placing agreement
pursuant to which the Placing Agent conditionally agreed
to place up to 200,000,000 Shares at HK$0.24 per Share
(the “Placing Shares”), on a best effort basis, to not less
than six share placees (“Share Placees”) under the general
mandate (the “Share Placing”). The placing price of the
Placing Shares were approximately a discount of 14.28%
to the closing price of the Shares of HK$0.28 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 22 March 2021. On 9 April
2021, 200,000,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued
by the Company to the Share Placees who are independent
third parties. The net proceeds from the Share Placing was
approximately HK$46,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB38,959,000) or at net price of approximately HK$0.23 per
Share. The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from
the Share Placing for the general working capital and future
investment of the Group as and when opportunities arise. The
net proceeds have been fully utilised as general working capital
for procurement of raw materials for production in the second
half of 2021. For details of the Share Placing, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 22 March 2021
and 9 April 2021.

INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had invested in the shares
of the companies listed on the Stock Exchange with total
carrying amount of approximately RMB36,262,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$44,492,000) (2020: nil). The Board
considers any single investment with fair value accounting for
more than 5% of the total assets of the Group as significant
investment. As the Group did not have any single investment
accounting for 5% or more of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
investments as at 31 December 2021.
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The portfolio of equity investments as at 31 December 2021 2021 F12 A3 ARER ELHE W T
are set out as follows.

Percentage of
fair value of the

Fair value of the investment in

Unrealised fair investment in listed securities/

value loss for the listed securities total assets of

year ended asat  the Group as at

Investment 31 December 31 December 31 December
cost 2021 2021 2021
R20215

HZ2021 R20215 12A31A L

F128318 L 1283182 EHREDT
FEXARSR LTREZREZ EEAEH

BRERF RYEER D¥E  BEEESH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at fair value &R FEHF ABHZ
through profit or loss CHEE 48,228 (11,299) 36,262 11.58%

During the Reporting Period, exchange loss of approximately REERN - B ETHRE B AR KImEE
RMB667,000 was recorded as a result of translation of HK$ BIEHEEHOARKe67TF T EHE2021F
to RMB. Details of the performance of financial assets at 12A3MBLEFE BRAFEFAEBZZS
fair value through profit or loss during the year ended 31 MEEEBREBOT

December 2021 are as follows:

Realised fair ~ Unrealised fair Dividend

value loss for the value loss for the  received during

year ended year ended  the year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2021 2021

220215 220215 #Z22021%F

12A31ALEEZ 12A31BLEEZ 12A31BLEE

Description of investments REHL CERNTEFE RERLTEFE WE 2 i) 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Listed securities in Hong Kong BEELMESR (1,762) (11,700) 253

In view of the recent volatility in the securities market, the BT HIE AT N ) E B TEHI R EAR
Directors expect the stock market will remain volatile in the EHENEEE NEBREBERSHE
coming year and the Group will continue to adopt the cautious BREREEESRINEIEREH LUER
approach in making investment decision in securities trading so B 1% [B] 3R > RS EN /S T 1 o

as to obtain a balance between risk and return.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any M FX R EEZIN B E20219F12H31H
significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of WFEE - ANEFWEEMEAAEE  TAR
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and capital assets during HELrHERBAT BEAT - -5200%N
the year ended 31 December 2021. BREE-

RERKERERAT —B--FFH 15
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, we did not record any material hire
purchase commitments, contingent liabilities, guarantees or
litigations against us.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK AND MANAGEMENT

The Group's sales and purchases are mainly denominated
in RMB. The Group retains some of its foreign currency
denominated funds, which are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Fluctuations in exchange rates have an impact on
the foreign currency reserve and the Company is exploring and
discussing measures to cope with the foreign exchange risk.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not enter into any
financial instruments to hedge foreign exchange.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 180 (2020:
150) employees. The Group offers its employees competitive
remuneration packages based on industry practices and
performance of individual employees. Year-end discretionary
bonuses may be granted to reward and motivate those well-
performed employees.

The Group provides employee benefits in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations. As required by the PRC laws and
regulations, the Group participates in various employee social
security plans for our employees that are administered by local
governments, including housing, pension, medical insurance,
maternity insurance and unemployment insurance. The Group
believes that it maintains a good working relationship with its
employees. The employees in Hong Kong are members of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31
January 2022, the Board proposed to change the English name
of the Company from “Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited”
to “Diwang Industrial Holdings Limited” and the dual foreign
name in Chinese of the Company from "JF& &I 3% A R
NE" to "HIBEZERER AT (“Proposed Change of
Company Name”). The Proposed Change of Company Name
was approved as a special resolution by the Shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2022.

The Company is carrying out all necessary filing procedures
with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong and in the
Cayman Islands regarding the Proposed Change of Company
Name accordingly. Further announcement will be made by the
Company in respect of the changes to trading arrangements,
including the new stock short name and the effective date of
the change of stock short name, as soon as practicable.

Saved as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any
material subsequent events after the reporting period and up
to the date of this report.

USES OF PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING ON 12 MARCH 2020 (THE
“INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING")

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 12 March 2020. Net proceeds from
the Initial Public Offering were approximately RMB72.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$84.7 million). The intended
uses of the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering were set
out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 27 February 2020
(the “Prospectus”).

AHEEHEEE
WMINAABHER2022F1A31BEMAE
FiRE BRI AARZEEE
i [ Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited |
¥ 2 A& [Diwang Industrial Holdings
Limited | - 30 K & BN B T8 2 X HH
HIRERNBRERERARIEH R
TEEERAERRAA] ([BEBEXRAA
EB]) BEERRFEWBERETAAR
2022F3A2A BT ZRREFRIAE L&
RERAVER AR R R E -

ARBIERZEERFEEHSE QA EMER
EREZHEE R AR AR MEMBELFE
FRFE - ARAHNNEAITERTE
RUBEELH 2 BE) (BB HE R
BB DEEZERBE) BTHEAS -

BRITRBEEN RBSHREEARRE
BH] AREEWETREAMREF-

R2020F3812H 2 B X DB &
E([BXLHBE])MEBFIEA
AR A2020F3 B 128 EBE X T £
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As at 31 December 2021, the Company utilised a total of
approximately RMB60.5 million for the purposes as listed

below.

Use of proceeds
in the same
manner and

proportion as
stated in the

Actual use of
proceeds as at 31

HZE2021F128318  AAG D SHAHAH
PAREOSEETLAR TIRAE-

Net proceeds
unutilised as at
31 December

Prospectus  December 2021 2021

BRERMRR R2021E RW2021E

BEARRLA® 123188 12B31B%X8A

Intended uses of proceeds FRERERR FrERERR NEERAR FERERE

RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARBEET ARBBET ARERET

Establishment of New Production Plant  EEH4EHE 433 411 2.2
Enhancing automation system of our BILRMBEERELERED

existing Jiande Production Plant BELER 11.9 10.5 14

Strengthening our research and s 1P TR L

development capabilities 15.8 75 8.3

General working capital —heEELS 1.4 1.4 -

72.4 60.5 11.9

The remaining proceeds of approximately RMB11.9 million will BT EBREHNARKIIORE THE S

be continually used in the same manner and proportions as set
out in the section headed “Future plans and use of proceeds”
in the Prospectus and is expected to be utilised by end of year
2022. The expected timeline for utilising the unutilised net
proceeds is based on the best estimation of the future market
conditions made by the Group. It may be subject to change
based on the current and future development of market
conditions.

RIBRER [ KRR L AEFERE] —
ENPTEAE R 77 = R b 1 B AR 3 TR B R —
T _EERZAESA -ERRE A
SRIENARARERARNEEERRTR
FIEH M REMG RER - HAIRET R
HE BT MORRERMEH 2 -
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Liu Jing (ZI& & L), aged 50, is the chairman of
our Board and an executive Director. She joined Zhejiang
Sunlight in March 2010 as a director. She is responsible for
formulating the corporate and business strategies of our Group
and overseeing overall business administration. Ms. Liu is the
spouse of Mr. Chen Hua, an executive Director.

Ms. Liu obtained a diploma in law from Zhejiang University
(T RE) of the PRC in December 2004 in a self-study
higher education programme and a master degree in business
administration from Edinburgh Napier University of the United
Kingdom in November 2007. Ms. Liu was conferred the
qualification of Registered Real Estate Appraiser* (zEffi&E
HEEARD) by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the PRC* (FRZE A R H BT 5 A 40 2%
#B)  since November 1997.

From May 1998 to March 2002, Ms. Liu worked at Zhejiang
Expressway Co., Ltd.* (MIEMEBERRAEKBROERA
A]) , which was principally engaged in investing in, developing
and operating expressways in the PRC, participating in
administrative function. From March 2002 to December 2009,
Ms. Liu worked at Zhejiang Hengxin Real Estate And Land
Valuation Company Limited* (/T 1815 5 th &= 1+ #0571
BMRAA]), a company providing valuation services for land
and buildings in the PRC, as an administrative vice-manager
responsible for human resources matters and administrative
functions.

Mr. Chen Hua (BRES4.), aged 48, is an executive
Director, also an executive director and general manager of
Zhejiang Sunlight. Mr. Chen is responsible for overseeing our
day-to-day management and business operation, formulating
business strategies and making major operational decisions
of our Group. Mr. Chen is the spouse of Ms. Liu Jing, the
chairman of our Board, an executive Director.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBRE

Mr. Chen was awarded a bachelor degree in mechanical
engineering from Zhejiang University T KEZ)  of the
PRC in June 1995. He was awarded the qualification of
senior economist* (=&AL ERD) by the Zhejiang Province
Economic Series Advanced Professional Technical Positions
Employment Qualification Review Committee* (/1% 45 %
RIESREERMBBEBRERTEELZEE) in December
2018. Mr. Chen has been engaged in the chemical engineering
industry for more than 19 years. From January 2000 to May
2006, Mr. Chen was employed by Hangzhou Rainbow Colour
Paste Co., Ltd.* (FIMFLLEHE AR AF), a manufacturer of
colourants, resins, finishes and additives for synthetic leather
and textiles, as a general manager. Mr. Chen joined Zhejiang
Sunlight in July 2006 and took up positions as a director and
the general manager. Mr. Chen was also the general manager
of Huzhou Milan Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (J#
MAKEREEEERAR) (formerly known as Hangzhou
Sunlight Chemical Co., Ltd.* (MM FE/NLTHERRE))
("Huzhou Milan”), a then manufacturer of chemical products,
from January 2005 to July 2006, responsible for its overall
management and formulation of business strategies, and was
its supervisor from November 2007 to July 2010, respectively.

Ms. Zhu Jiangin (%&RZZZ L), aged 53, is an executive
Director. She is also a chief engineer of Zhejiang Sunlight
responsible for overseeing and monitoring our research and
development functions, technical know-how management and
technology innovation. Ms. Zhu obtained a bachelor degree in
chemical engineering from Zhejiang Institute of Technology*
(T TEPFL) (now known as Zhejiang University of
Technology* (I T K2)) of the PRC in July 1991. She
obtained a qualification for professorate senior engineer* (%X
B EATEE) from the Department of Human Resources
and Social Security of Zhejiang Province* (#;T%& A & RH
HE{RERE) of the PRC in December 2017. She was awarded
as one of Deqing County Top Ten Technology Innovation
Leaders for 2010* (“2010F E/E/8% T ERMAIFNHEA")
from the Deqging County General Union* (125H%@ET ).

Ms. Zhu joined our Group in January 2006 and is currently
one of our chief engineers. Ms. Zhu has over 18 years of
experience in the chemical engineering and colourants
business. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhu worked for
Hangzhou Rainbow Colour Paste Co., Ltd.* (#g /i F 4T 557
BBRAA]), a manufacturer of colourants, resins, finishes and
additives for synthetic leather and textiles, from March 2000 to
October 2004. Ms. Zhu was an engineer of Huzhou Milan and
responsible for product development from November 2004 to
December 2005.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wen Yongwen (JB7K3C%4) , aged 32, was appointed
as executive Director on 24 November 2021. Mr. Wen obtained
a postgraduate degree in supply chain, trade and finance
from City University of London and a bachelor’s degree in
accounting and finance from University of Durham. He is
experienced in overseeing companies’ daily operations with a
focus in customer relationship management as well as fund
raising and cost optimisation. From October 2013 to May
2016, he was a member of the management in a catering
company where its operations were in Shenzhen, he assisted
with the formation of the company, overseeing the day-to-
day operations as well as client management duties. From
November 2016 to August 2020, he was a vice president
of Lamtex Securities Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Lamtex Holdings Limited (stock code: 1041), the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange), during which he had
established a clientele pool that accounted for a significant
portion of the company’s clientele base, providing professional
services to Hong Kong listed companies and overseeing the
daily operations of the company.

Mr. Wen has served as a director of China On Securities
Limited since July 2021, which is a registered securities trading
firm of the Securities and Futures Commission, and he had
also served as a non-executive director of Republic Healthcare
Limited (stock code: 8357), the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange, from 9 August 2021 to 17 February 2022.

Mr. Gu Jianguo (EEZEEI%4%) aged 40, was appointed as
executive Director on 10 December 2021. Mr. Gu has over 18
years of experience in project and administrative management
and has extensive expertise in operation and production of
glass and materials related products. From 2003 to 2012,
Mr. Gu was an executive deputy general manager of Nanjing
Yaopi Network Technology Co., Limited* (@ R 448 %E

RABEMAF) (formerly known as Nanjing Yaopi Glass Co.,
Limited* (FRBXIEIBARLF])). Since 2014, Mr. Gu

has worked as a general manager at Hongze Hetai Investment
Co., Limited* (HOEMZFREZAFRAF]) . Mr. Gu completed
a senior management program from the Business School of
Nanjing Normal University.

*  For identification purpose only
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EEREREEEBRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Hei Ching (BfE¥%4£), aged 37, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director on 25 January 2022.
Mr. Au obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Honours) in Business Economics from the City University of
Hong Kong and has over 14 years of experience in finance
and asset management. Mr. Au has been a financial risk
manager of the Global Association of Risk Professionals since
2011. From October 2007 to August 2010, Mr. Au worked
as principal business development officer at a bank in Hong
Kong. Since October 2010, Mr. Au has worked as SFC licensed
representative and responsible officer in various licensed
corporations. He has extensive experience in managing private
funds, advising on risk management strategies, supervising
daily securities brokerage operations and providing advisory
services to investors.

Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen ({AIJ5R % %), aged 45, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director in
February 2020. Mr. Ho received a MBA degree from the
University of Chicago Booth School of Business, a Master
of Science degree in financial economics from University
of London and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. He is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Ho is currently an independent non-executive director
of Stream Ideas Group Limited (stock code: 8401). Mr.
Ho is the chief financial officer and company secretary of
Tianyun International Holdings Limited (stock code: 6836),
since February 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Ho was the chief
financial officer of Tuenbo Group Limited and held various
senior positions in Wisdom Asset Management Limited,
Hermes Capital Limited and Evolution Group Limited (now
known as Investec Group) specialized in asset management,
private equity, and corporate finance. Mr. Ho also worked
for PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong, KPMG UK and
Grant Thornton Corporate Finance UK from 1998 to 2006
specialising in audit, advisory and corporate finance.
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Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (BB %k4%E), aged
40, was appointed as independent non-executive Director
on 25 January 2022. He obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Commerce (Accounting) from the University of Queensland,
Australia and has over 17 years of experience in financial
reporting, investment analysis, merger & acquisition exercises
and business development. He has been a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2009
and a fellow member since 2014. From November 2017 to
June 2020, he was an independent non-executive director
of Chuan Holdings Limited (stock code: 1420), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
From February 2018 to April 2019, he was an executive
director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code:
8148), the shares of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive
director of Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited (stock code: 1188),
Asia Television Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) and Li Bao
Ge Group Limited (stock code: 1869), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Kirin Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8109) (“Kirin Group”), the shares of
which are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zheng Yu (EBF5E4), aged 43, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 25 January 2022. He
obtained a bachelor's degree in law from Nanjing University
and has over 18 years of experience in the legal profession. He
obtained the PRC Legal Professional Qualification Certificate in
September 2002 and has been a practising lawyer at Jiangsu
Phaedo Law Firm since 2003, currently holding the position of
senior partner. Mr. Zheng is also an arbitrator on the panel of
the Zhanjiang Arbitration Commission of the Zhanjiang Court
of International Arbitration.
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EEREREEEBRE

Ms. Zhou Xiaochun (B#&&Z L), aged 64, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director on 25 January 2022.
She has over 41 years of experience in alcohol-related research
and technology, product and quality management. Since 1980,
Ms. Zhou has been engaged in wine-related professional
technology work at Jiangxi Jinggang Winery Industry Co.,
Ltd.*r CIFHREBEZARETAA), where she currently
holds the position of chief engineer. Ms. Zhou was accredited
as a senior engineer in the field of chemistry by the Jiangxi
Occupational Titles Reform Work Leading Group* (L
ERLFEENESEE/NH)  in November 2000. In March 2012,
she obtained the Occupational Qualification Certificate in
wine tasting. From November 2016 to November 2021, Ms.
Zhou was a panelist of the 9th National Baijiu Spirit Panel
of the China National Food Industry Association. She was
also a national occupational skills appraisal senior examiner
for winemakers and sommeliers between October 2018 and
October 2021. In September 2020, Ms. Zhou was appointed
as the team leader of the Jiangxi Province 12th Chinese Baijiu
Expert Panel* OIFAEE+_EHBEXM) by the Jiangxi
Food Industry Association.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. He Zhangcai (M EBR %), aged 47, is the chief
financial officer of our Group. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the financial operations of our Group. Mr. He
was awarded a bachelor degree in economic and business
administration from Chongqging University (EE K&)
of the PRC in January 2009 through participation in its
partial online course. He was conferred the qualification of
accountant* (&5tAT) by the MOF in May 1998. Mr. He
has over 17 years of experience in the chemical engineering
industry. He joined Zhejiang Sunlight in December 2005,
with his current position being a finance manager. Since June
2000 and prior to joining Zhejiang Sunlight, Mr. He worked
in various manufacturers of colourants, resins, finishes and
additives for synthetic leather and textiles and chemical
products, taking up financial responsibilities, including Huzhou
Milan where he also served as its executive director, manager
and legal representative from November 2007 to July 2010.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Cai Jianming (ZEEHBEE), aged 54, is a deputy
general manager of Zhejiang Sunlight responsible for
overseeing the production management of our Group. Mr. Cai
obtained an advanced level certificate in the advanced level
study of business administration for growing small to medium
size business enterprises* (B RAE AR /NP E SR TR E EH
ENSBIHENZEZ) awarded by Zhejiang University (i
JIRZ) of the PRC in May 2014. He was awarded Deging

County Excellent Employee at Hard Times* ({25 % B H

BFB,T) by the Deging County General Trade Union* (&
BBMETE) inApril 2010 and The Most Beautiful Meicheng

Citizen* (1BIREEZEMIMA) by Meicheng Town People’s
Government* in November 2017 (183 E A REAT) . Mr.
Cai joined our Group in January 2006 and was appointed to
be a manufacturing manager of Zhejiang Sunlight in January
2007. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cai was employed by
Hangzhou Rainbow Colour Paste Co., Ltd.* (fu/l &
#REPRAF), a manufacturer of colourants, resins, finishes
and additives for synthetic leather and textiles, from August
2001 to October 2004. He was a manager of Huzhou Milan
between November 2004 and December 2005 overseeing the
production department.

Mr. Zhao Xuesheng (HEZBER54), aged 49, is a deputy
general manager of Zhejiang Sunlight responsible for
overseeing the sales and marketing functions of our Group.
Mr. Zhao joined our Group in January 2006 taking up sales
and marketing responsibilities and was promoted to the
position of deputy general manager in August 2016. Mr.
Zhao obtained a diploma in applied chemistry from Zhejiang
University (7T KE)  of the PRC in June 1994. He was
qualified as junior assistant economist* (%) 4% B 3% 4% 775 Bl )
by the Hangzhou Personnel Bureau* (#MAERF) in July
1997. Prior to joining our Group, he was employed by Zhejiang
Weier Da Chemical Co., Ltd.* CIIE®RZE(LTARAA), a
manufacturer of pesticides, insecticides, acaricides, fungicides
and herbicides, from January 1999 to June 2002, with his last
position being a district sales manager. Afterwards, he was
employed by Hangzhou Rainbow Colour Paste Co., Ltd.* (7
MA@ AHEAT) a manufacturer of colourants, resins,
finishes and additives for synthetic leather and textiles, from
April 2002 to November 2003, with his last position being a
district sales manager. From October 2004 to January 2008,
Mr. Zhao worked for Huzhou Milans taking up sales and
marketing responsibilities.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Li Xiangyu (BREF %L L), aged 56, is a chief engineer
and supervisor of Zhejiang Sunlight responsible for overseeing
and monitoring our research and development functions,
technical know-how management and technology innovation.
He has been an executive Director of the Company from 21
June 2019 to 24 November 2021. Mr. Li graduated from
East China Institute of Chemical Technology* (ZER/{t T £
BT ) (currently known as East China University of Science and
Technology* (ZEFRIE T KE)) of the PRC with a bachelor
degree in fine chemicals, specialising in intermediates and
dyes, in July 1987. He obtained a qualification of senior
engineer* (&E# T#2E0) from the Department of Human
Resources and Social Security of Zhejiang Province* (i
BANERMLERERE) of the PRC in November 2011.
Mr. Li has over 27 years of experience of chemical engineering
and overseeing the synthetic leather products business. Mr.
Li joined our Group in January 2006 and is currently one of
our chief engineers. Prior to joining our Group, he worked in
Zhejiang Hangyi Synthetic Leather Company Limited* (7T
MEAKEARZAR), a manufacturer of synthetic leather,
from April 1992 to July 2001. Subsequently, he worked for
Hangzhou Rainbow Colour Paste Co., Ltd.* (#M ¥4I 4%
BFE/AF]), a manufacturer of colourants, resins, finishes and
additives for synthetic leather and textiles, from August 2001
to August 2004, with his duties of work also including research
and development. Mr. Li was an engineer of Huzhou Milan,
responsible for product development, between November
2004 and December 2005, and was its executive director,
manager and legal representative from July 2010 to April
2016.

*  For identification purpose only
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (FR#EE%4%), aged 39, obtained
a Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) majoring in
Accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2005. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has extensive
experiences in accounting, audit, financial management and
company secretarial works.

Mr. Lui Chi Ho (B&EZE5%E4%), aged 49, was appointed as
one of the joint company secretaries of our Company in April
2019. Mr. Lui is a partner of INCE & CO, a law firm in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lui has been admitted as a solicitor to the High
Court of Hong Kong since 1999. He was also admitted as a
solicitor to the Supreme Court of England and Wales in 2004.
Mr. Lui is a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and is an accredited mediator of Hong Kong International
Arbitration Centre. Mr. Lui is also a China Appointed Attesting
Officer, a member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel
and the chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings).
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Reporting Period. Certain information set out in this annual
report are disclosed up to the date of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other details of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. Pursuant to the requirements of
Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”),
further discussion and analysis of the principal activities of
the Group (including the business review of the Group and
the description of the potential business development of the
Group) are set out in the management discussion and analysis
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Business Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s principal business activity is the manufacturing
and sales of faux leather chemicals, whose principal risks
include the quality of the products and the security during
production. The Group has taken comprehensive measures to
ensure that both quality and security will meet the industry
standards. The fluctuation of the development of the industry
has resulted in a significant impact on the Group’s business in
the Reporting Period. Please refer to the Chairman’s Statement
for further discussion on the business risks we face and how
we manage such risks.

Financial Risks

The Group’s main risks arising from its financial instruments are
interest rate and exchange rate risks, equity price risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. Details of the financial risk management
objectives and policies are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Tax concession

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the
securities of the Company.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and the development of the society.

Details of the Group’'s development, performance and
operation in the environmental aspect are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has adopted internal control and risk management
policies to monitor the on-going compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations. As far as the Board is concerned,
the Group had complied in all material aspects with the
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC, and did not have
any incidents of material non-compliance, and the Group
had obtained all relevant permits, approval documents,
qualifications, authorizations and approvals material to our
business operations.

Overall compliance

As at the date of this annual report, save as disclosed above,
there are no material pending or threatened litigation matters
or other proceedings involving the Group, and the Group is
not involved in any litigation or other proceedings that we
believe would materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operation.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's top five customers accounted for approximately
37.0% (2020: approximately 31.9%) of the total sales and the
top five suppliers accounted for approximately 23.6% (2020:
approximately 27.1%) of its total purchases for Reporting
Period. In addition, the Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 12.7% (2020: approximately 8.1%) of the
total sales and the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 6.1% (2020: approximately 10.4%) of the total
purchases for Reporting Period.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, at no time during
the Reporting Period, have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the share capital of
the Company) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group is in good relationship with its employees and
also has policies in place to ensure competitive remuneration,
well-developed welfare package and continuous professional
training for its employees. The Group also maintains a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers, without whom its
production and operation may be impaired.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in the Company’'s reserves during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the Company had distributable
reserves amounting to RMB92,415,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB70,177,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donation for charitable purposes of approximately
RMB1,025,000 were made by the Group during the Reporting
Period (31 December 2020: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial periods is set out on page 152
of this Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Reporting Period.
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Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Policy on payment of
dividend of the Company is in place setting out the factors in
determination of dividend payment of the Company, including
the Group's actual and expected financial performance,
shareholders’ interests, retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and each of the other members
of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio,
return on equity and financial covenants to which the Group
is subject, possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness,
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders, the Group expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, liquidity position and
future commitments at the time of declaration of dividend,
taxation considerations, statutory and regulatory restrictions,
general business conditions and strategies, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the
Company; and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
The policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the
Board for approval if amendments are required.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the listing date of the Shares on 12 March
2020 (the “Listing Date”) or his/her respective date of
appointment which was later than the Listing Date, which
may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other and is subject to
termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement
by rotation of the Directors as set out in the Articles of
Association.
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Remuneration of Directors and senior management

Each of our executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.
Each of our executive Directors shall be paid a remuneration
on the basis of twelve months in a year. In addition, each of
our executive Directors is also entitled to bonus as determined
by the Board based on the recommendations made by our
Remuneration Committee. The current annual director’s fees
and remuneration of our executive Directors are as follows:

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with our Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date or
for an initial term of one year if his/her respective date of
appointment was later than the Listing Date and is entitled to
a director’s fee of HK$120,000 per annum.

In 2021, each of the executive Directors did not receive a
director’s fee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. WONG
Yee Nor agreed to waive her emolument of approximately
RMB44,000.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) has
any interest in any business which competes, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group under the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
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Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set out as
follows:
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of Long/short in the
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares position Company
AR ERE
A g/ EEMtE B4 & B ¥a/ %R ZBNEIR
Mr. Chen Hua Interest in controlled corporation and 30,004,000 Long position 2.50%
interest of spouse Mote -2
PREE S 4 R LR R ML EER W2 A
Ms. Liu Jing Interest in controlled corporation and 30,004,000 Long position 2.50%
interest of spouse Motes 1-2)
BlF L R EEER LB ) e
Ms. Zhu Jiangin Interest in controlled corporation et 1) 30,004,000 Long position 2.50%
KEEL L REEE R D A
Mr. He Zhangcai Interest in controlled corporation MtV 30,004,000 Long position 2.50%
(EE e R EEER WY e
Mr. Zhao Xuesheng Interest in controlled corporation Mete 30,004,000 Long position 2.50%
HEBEEE Ry L@ R e A
Mr. Cai Jianming Interest in controlled corporation Mete 30,004,000 Long position 2.50%
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Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2021, Sunlight Global Investment Limited
(“Sunlight Global”) and Lilian Global Investment Limited (“Lilian
Global”) held approximately 1.50% and approximately 1.00%,
respectively, of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Sunlight Global is owned as to 61.20% by Mr. Chen Hua,
13.24% by Ms. Zhu Jiangin, 13.24% by Mr. Li Xiangyu, 9.24%
by Mr. He Zhangcai, 2.14% by Mr. Chen Yong, 0.54% by Mr.
Cai Jianming and 0.40% by Mr. Zhao Xuesheng. Lilian Global is
wholly-owned by Ms. Liu Jing. Ms. Liu is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Lilian Global is interested under
the SFO. Mr. Chen Hua, Ms. Liu Jing, Ms. Zhu Jiangin, Mr. Li
Xiangyu, Mr. He Zhangcai, Mr. Zhao Xuesheng, Mr. Cai Jianming
and Mr. Chen Yong are entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of approximately 2.50% of the voting power at general
meetings of our Company through exercising or controlling
the exercise of the entire voting power at general meetings
of Sunlight Global and Lilian Global, and therefore they are
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Sunlight Global
and Lilian Global are interested under the SFO.

(2)  Mr. Chen Hua and Ms. Liu Jing are spouses to each other.
Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which he or she is interested under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be maintained
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at any time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18 were
granted any right to subscribe for the share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate, or had
exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

To the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) have the
following interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required pursuant to section 336
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of Long/short in the
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares position Company
BEDRRE
=L 5/ EEtE gy 4= Be/ %R ZBHEIL
Mr. Zhou Chulong Beneficial Owner 260,000,000 Long position 21.67%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, to the
knowledge of the Directors, none of any other person (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be
recorded in the register referred to in section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Participants (as defined below) had or may have
made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the
Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake
in our Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives: (i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; (ii)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of our Group;
and (iii) for such purposes as our Board may approve from time
to time.

Who may join

Our Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as our Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph headed “Subscription price” below to the following
(the "Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of our Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, agents
and related entities to our Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of our Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Global Offering,
being 100,000,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose Shares
which would have been issuable pursuant to the options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of our Company).
Subject to the issue of a circular by our Company and the
approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time, our Board may:

(i)  renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue
as of the date of the approval by our Shareholders in
general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the 10% Ilimit to Eligible
Participants specifically identified by our Board. The
circular issued by our Company to our Shareholders shall
contain a generic description of the specified Eligible
Participants who may be granted such options, the
number and terms of the options to be granted, the
purpose of granting options to the specified Eligible
Participants with an explanation as to how the options
serve such purpose, the information required under
Rule 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer required under Rule
17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options shall be granted under any schemes of our Company
(including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
30% limit being exceeded. The maximum number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted shall be adjusted, in
such manner as the auditors of our Company or an approved
independent financial adviser shall certify to be appropriate,
fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration in the capital
structure of our Company in accordance with paragraph (q)
below whether by way of consolidation, capitalisation issue,
rights issue, sub-division or reduction of the share capital of
our Company but in no event shall exceed the limit prescribed
in this paragraph.
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Maximum number of options for each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as of
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

the issue of a circular by our Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of
and terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant) the information
as required under Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of the Listing
Rules and/or such other requirements as prescribed under
the Listing Rules from time to time; and

the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/
or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time with such Eligible Participant and his
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible
Participant is a Connected Person) abstaining from
voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise
price) of options to be granted to such participant must
be fixed before our Shareholders’ approval and the date
of our Board meeting at which our Board proposes to
grant the options to such Eligible Participant shall be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the subscription price of the Shares. Our Board shall
forward to such Eligible Participant an offer document in
such form as our Board may from time to time determine.
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Grant of options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of our Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the options). If our Board proposes to grant options to a
substantial shareholder or any independent nonexecutive
Director or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) which will result in the number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other
percentage as may be from time to time provided under
the Listing Rules of the Shares in issue;

(i) having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million or
such other sum as may be from time to time provided
under the Listing Rules, based on the official closing price
of the Shares at the date of each grant, such further
grant of options will be subject to the issue of a circular
by our Company and the approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting on a poll at which the grantee, his/
her associates and all core connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of our Company shall abstain
from voting in favour, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time. Any
vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options shall be taken as a poll.

The circular to be issued by our Company to our Shareholders
pursuant to the above paragraph shall contain the following
information:

(i)  the details of the number and terms (including the
exercise price) of the options to be granted to each
selected Eligible Participant which must be fixed before
our Shareholders’ meeting and the date of Board meeting
for proposing such further grant shall be taken as the
date of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise
price of such options;
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(i) a recommendation from the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options) to the
independent shareholders as to voting;

(iii) the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(c) and (d)
and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules; and

(iv) the information required under Rule 2.17 of the Listing
Rules.

Performance targets and vesting conditions

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets
as our Board may then specify in the grant before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as our Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.

Term of the Share Option Scheme

An option is personal to the grantee and may be exercised or
treated as exercised, as the case may be, in whole or in part.
No grantee shall in any way sell, transfer, charge, mortgage,
encumber or create any interest (legal or beneficial) in favour
of any third party over or in relation to any option or attempt
so to do (save that the grantee may nominate a nominee in
whose name the Shares issued pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme may be registered). Any breach of the foregoing shall
entitle our Company to cancel any outstanding options or any
part thereof granted to such grantee.
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Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to our Company by way of consideration for the grant. Any
offer to grant an option to subscribe for Shares may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for
which it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of
a board lot of dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly stated in
the duplicate offer document constituting the acceptance of
the option. To the extent that the offer to grant an option is
not accepted by any prescribed acceptance date, it shall be
deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon
which the Option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined
by our Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. No
option may be granted more than 10 years after the Listing
Date. Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general
meeting or by our Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the Listing
Date.

No share option has been granted by our Company and no
share options were outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or exercised
under the share option scheme during the Reporting Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements constitute connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transaction is fully exempt if all the percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) are less than 5% and the
total consideration is less than HK$3,000,000. The Company
has confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for these
transactions.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

Annual contributions to retirement benefit schemes operated
by the government in the PRC are recognised in the profit or
loss as and when incurred.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of
corporate governance practices. Information about the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on it.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required by
the Listing Rules and at least 25% of the Company’s entire
issued share capital were held by the public from the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against the Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors (including any director(s)
resigned during the Reporting Period) as required by section
470 of the Companies Ordinance when the Directors’ Report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company these annual results and the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
statements matters, including the review of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed as
the auditor of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has audited the
accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited is subject to retirement
and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for re-appointment of HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor will be proposed at
the AGM.

By Order of the Board
Ms. Liu Jing
Chairman and executive Director

Hangzhou, PRC, 29 March 2022
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OVERVIEW

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate
Governance Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules as its own corporate governance code. The Directors
recognise the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve
effective accountability to the shareholders as a whole. The
Board still strives to uphold good corporate governance
and adopts sound corporate governance practices. Save as
disclosed below, during the Reporting Period, the Company
has applied the principles and code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code and has complied with all the
code provisions and the recommended best practices, as
appropriate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Board has adopted the principles and the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules to ensure that the
Company’s business activities and decision making processes
are regulated in a proper and prudent manner. The Board
confirmed that the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that during the year ended 31 December
2021, they had complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes leadership and control of the Company
and oversee the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions,
internal control, risk management and performances. The
directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company. Some functions including, inter alia, monitor and
approval of material transactions, matters involving conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or director(s) of the
Company, the approval of the interim and annual results, other
disclosures to the public or regulators and the internal control
system are reserved by the Board and the decisions relating
to such matters shall be subject to the decision of the Board.
Matters not specifically reserved to the Board and necessary
for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to the
management under the supervision of the respective Directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of ten
Directors, being five executive Directors and five independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors as at the date of this
annual report and the Directors who has served the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out as below.

Executive Directors

Ms. Liu Jing (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Chen Hua

Ms. Zhu Jiangin

Mr. Wen Yongwen (appointed on 24 November 2021)

Mr. Gu Jianguo (appointed on 10 December 2021)

Mr. Li Xiangyu (resigned on 24 November 2021)

Ms. Wong Yee Nor (appointed on 30 July 2021 and
resigned on 10 December 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Au Hei Ching (appointed on 25 January 2022)

Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (appointed on 25 January 2022)
Mr. Zheng Yu (appointed on 25 January 2022)

Ms. Zhou Xiaochun (appointed on 25 January 2022)

Mr. Tian Jingyan (resigned on 25 January 2022)

Ms. Yu Zhen (resigned on 25 January 2022)
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The biographies of Directors and their relationship, if any, are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. The Company
reviews the composition of the Board from time to time, to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the Company’s business, and the Board has
a strong independent element to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to termination
provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
the Directors as set out in the Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors (including executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) shall retire from office
by rotation. Pursuant to A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

As the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company was
convened on 25 May 2021 and the Directors were re-elected in
the meeting, the re-election of Directors for the year 2021 will
be proceeded in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, Ms.
Liu Jing served as the chairman of the Board. The position of
chief executive officer of the Company remains vacant. The
responsibilities of the chief executive officer are taken up
by Mr. Chen Hua, an executive Director. The Board believes
that this arrangement enables the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s
objectives efficiently. The Board also believes that the Company
already has a strong corporate governance structure in place to
ensure effective oversight of management.

TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives
an induction package covering business operations, policy and
procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory
and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that
he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and maintenance of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enroll in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and
corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

During the Reporting Period, all the Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development and
refreshed their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Such
professional development was completed by way of attending
briefings, conferences, courses, forums, seminars and lectures
which are relevant to the business or Directors’ duties, as well
as reading relevant information and participating in business-
related research.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held 6
meetings.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman to prepare
the agenda of the meeting and each Director may request to
include any matters in the agenda. Generally, notice would
be given for a regular meeting of the Company at least 14
days in advance. The Directors will receive details of agenda
items for decision at least 3 days before each Board meeting.
The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to each of the Directors prior to the meetings of
the Board to ensure that the Directors may receive accurate,
timely and clear information to make informed decisions
regarding the matters to be discussed in the meetings.
All Directors may access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. All Directors will also be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for ensuring the procedures of Board meetings are
observed and providing the Board with opinions on matters
in relation to the compliance with the procedures of Board
meetings. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded
in sufficient details, including the matters considered by the
Board and the decisions reached.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at the
various meetings of the Company during the Reporting Period
are set out below:

i

*xERAWE

SEERBEHNEFARTE AN E
B R ST

Annual
general Audit Remuneration Nomination
meeting Board Committee =~ Committee = Committee
Name of Director EEpng RREFAE EEg ENZEE ¥FMzZEE REZES
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Liu Jing (Chairman) AF L (EELER) 0/1 6/6 - - 33
Mr. Chen Hua BRELE 0/1 6/6 - 3/3 -
Ms. Zhu Jiangin REERL 0/1 6/6 - - -
Mr. Wen Yongwen/ B AN 0/1 22 - - -
Mr. Gu Jianguo* BREL L 0/1 17 - - -
Mr. Li Xiangyu* BrFis 0/1 22 - - -
Ms. Wong Yee Nor* FREELL 01 33 - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV ##H{TEE
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen fERLE 11 3/6 22 - 23
Mr. Tian Jingyan* BERLEY 0/1 6/6 22 3/3 33
Ms. Yu Zhen® BERX LR 0/1 4/6 212 23 -
A (appointed on 24 November 2021) A (R20215F 11 A24B £ 1)
* (appointed on 10 December 2021) * (72021512 A10B EZ F)
# (resigned on 24 November 2021) # (FA20214E11 8248 B2 4E)
# (appointed on 30 July 2021 and resigned on # (720217 A30B EZ T K
10 December 2021) 202112 108 B E)
# (resigned on 25 January 2022) # (FA202251 A258 & 1F)
BOARD COMMITTEES EEEgEET

We have established the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination committee on 10 February 2020.
Each of the above three committees has written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The functions
of the above three committees are summarised as follows:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

We established the Audit Committee. During the Reporting
Period, the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Ho Ho Tung
Armen, Mr. Tian Jingyan and Ms. Yu Zhen and is chaired by
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen, who has the appropriate professional
qualifications required under the Listing Rules. Mr. Tian
Jingyan and Ms. Yu Zhen has ceased to be a member of the
Audit Committee on 25 January 2022. Mr. Au Hei Ching,
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace, Mr. Zheng Yu and Ms. Zhou
Xiaochun have been appointed as members of the Audit
Committee since 25 January 2022. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to assist our Board by providing
an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of our Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop
and review our policies and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has
performed its duties, reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system and risk management of the Company and
reviewed the terms of engagement of the external auditors.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed with the management
of the Company the interim results of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2021 and also with the external
auditor the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020, and was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results was in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards, rules and regulations and that adequate disclosures
have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

We established the Remuneration Committee. During the
Reporting Period, The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr.
Tian Jingyan, Mr. Chen Hua and Ms. Yu Zhen and is chaired
by Mr. Tian Jingyan. Mr. Tian Jingyan and Ms. Yu Zhen has
ceased to be the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee respectively on 25 January 2022. Mr. Lee Cheung
Yuet Horace and Ms. Zhou Xiaochun have been appointed as
the chairman and a member of the Remuneration Committee,
respectively, since 25 January 2022. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to our Board regarding our policy and structure for the
remuneration of all of our Directors and senior management.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
has discussed and reviewed the remuneration policies of
the Company, reviewed and made recommendations with
respect to the remuneration of Board members for approval
by the Board and made recommendations with respect to
the remuneration of the newly appointed Director during the
Reporting Period for approval by the Board. The Remuneration
Committee had formulated the remuneration policy for
Directors, approved the terms of service contracts of Directors
and devised the principle for the remuneration of executive
Directors for 2021.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is determined on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance,
experience, responsibility, workload and time devoted to
the Company and comparable market statistics, for Board
approval. Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic
salary which is reviewed annually. In addition, each of the
executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus as the
Remuneration Committee may recommend. Such amount has
to be approved by the Board.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the
Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

We established the Nomination Committee. During the
Reporting Period, The Nomination Committee consists of
Ms. Liu Jing, Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen and Mr. Tian Jingyan
and is chaired by Ms. Liu Jing. Mr. Tian Jingyan ceased to
be a member of the Nomination Committee on 25 January
2022. Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace has been appointed as a
member of the Nomination Committee since 25 January 2022.
The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of our Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to our Board to
complement our Company's corporate strategy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
making recommendations to our Board on the appointment
of members of our Board and succession planning of our
Directors, and assessing the independence of our independent
non-executive Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
and conducted a full review on the professional qualifications
and career background of all candidates to directorships
and members of each Board committee as well as the
independence of the independent Directors.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company
to protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and
the Company. They serve actively on the Board and Board
committees to provide their independent and objective views.
In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, as at the date of the annual report, the Company
has appointed five independent non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. One of the
independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director has
submitted annual confirmation of his/her independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
the contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Chen Weibo resigned as a
joint company secretary on 24 November 2021 and Mr. Chan
Ming Kei has been appointed as a joint company secretary on
24 November 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Chan Ming Kei
and Mr. Lui Chi Ho are joint company secretaries of the
Company, whose biographies are set out in the section headed
“Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report. Mr. Chan and Mr. Lui have received no less
than 15 hours of training on corporate governance and other
aspects in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of our Board that are relevant to our
business growth.
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Pursuant to our board diversity policy, selection of our Board
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other factors
that our Board may consider relevant and applicable from
time to time. High emphasis is placed on ensuring a balanced
composition of skills and experience at our Board level in order
to provide a range of perspectives, insights and challenge that
enable our Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities
effectively, support good decision making in view of the core
businesses and strategy of our Group, and support succession
planning and development of our Board. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to our Board.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring
the implementation of our board diversity policy. After the
Listing, our Nomination Committee will review our Board’s
composition at least once annually taking into account the
benefits of all relevant diversity aspects, and adhere to our
board diversity policy when making recommendation on any
Board appointments. Our Nomination Committee will also
ensure that diversity of our Board is considered as part of the
evaluation of our Board’s effectiveness. A summary of our
board diversity policy together with any measurable objectives
and specific diversity targets set for implementing the policy,
and the progress made towards achieving those objectives and
targets will be disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

We have adopted or expect to adopt a set of risk management
measures and internal control policies to identify, evaluate and
manage risks arising from our operations prior to Listing. Our
internal control system is summarised as follows:

—  We have formed an Audit Committee comprising five
independent non-executive Directors as part of our
measures to improve corporate governance. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to provide our
Directors with an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, internal control,
and risk management system of our Group, to oversee
the audit process, and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Directors;
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—  We have adopted and implemented comprehensive
control policies in respect of various aspects of our
business operations such as (i) risk management policies;
(i) conflict of interest guidelines; and (iii) disclosure
guidelines;

- We shall establish system and manuals in relation to,
among others, distribution of annual or interim reports
and publication, handling and monitoring of inside
information prior to public announcement and other
requirements under the Listing Rules;

- Our Directors have attended training sessions conducted
by our legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws on the on-
going obligations and duties of a director of a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange;

- We will comply with the Corporate Governance Code. To
avoid potential conflicts of interest, we will implement
corporate governance measures as set out in the
paragraph headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders — Corporate governance measures” in the
Prospectus, if applicable. Our Directors will review our
corporate governance measures and our compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code each financial year
and comply with the “comply or explain” principle in
our corporate governance reports to be included in our
annual reports after Listing;

—  We have engaged Giraffe Capital Limited as our
compliance adviser and have engaged Ince & Co, our
legal adviser as to Hong Kong laws, to advise and assist
our Board on compliance matters in relation to the
Listing Rules and/or other relevant laws and regulations
applicable to our Company; and

—  When considered necessary and appropriate, we will
seek professional advice and assistance from independent
internal control consultants, external legal advisers and/or
other appropriate independent professional advisers with
respect to matters relating to our internal controls and
legal compliance.

During the Reporting Period, we engaged an independent
internal control consultant (the “Internal Control
Consultant”) to perform a review over certain key areas
of our internal control system. The Internal Control
Consultant provided recommendations for our management’s
consideration to enhance our internal controls and procedures.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group’s financial statements for each financial period to give
a true and fair view of the financial position, results and cash
flows of the Group for the period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
has selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Group and which enable
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards as promulgated by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the Company appointed HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards to provide audit
services to the Company. The remuneration relating to the
annual audit services was RMB850,000. In addition, the
Company separately appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited for audit services for the Company’s subsidiaries
and for other non-audit services amounted to approximately
RMB8,000.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders have the right to initiate and convene
general meetings

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the
following rights: Extraordinary general meetings shall also
be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders are welcome to put forward proposals relating
to the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group
at a general meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or
the Company Secretary by written requisition to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Suites 4404-10, 44/F, One Island East, 18 Westlands
Road, Taikoo Place, Hong Kong.

Shareholders are entitled to the enquiry right

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board
by directly mailing to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Suites 4404-10, 44/F, One
Island East, 18 Westlands Road, Taikoo Place, Hong Kong.
The Company will deal with all enquiries in a timely and
appropriate manner.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential to the enhancement of the
relationship with investors and enhancement of investors’
understanding of the Company’s business and strategies.
The Company highly values shareholders’ opinions and
suggestions, and actively organises and conducts various
activities related to the relationship with investors in order to
maintain the communication with shareholders, and to timely
satisfy the reasonable demands of all shareholders.
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To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains
its website at http://www.slkj.cn where latest information on
the Company’s business development, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The AGM will be held on 24 May 2022. The notice of the AGM
will be sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors
will help build a more stable shareholder base. As a result,
since the Listing, the Company has been and will be dedicated
to maintaining a higher degree of transparency, complying
with the Listing Rules and timely providing investors with
comprehensive and accurate information, and continuously
performing its obligation of information disclosure as a listed
company. The Company will strengthen its communication
with investors and let investors understand corporate strategies
and business operation by organising road shows, participating
in investors summit, voluntary information disclosure and
others.

The Company will continue to maintain a policy for open and
effective communication with investors for the purposes of
timely providing investors with the latest information on the
Company’s business while in compliance with the relevant
regulatory provisions.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Articles of Association was conditionally adopted on 10
February 2020 with effect from the Listing Date.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company actively fulfills its social responsibilities by
protecting the environment, making good use of and
cherishing resources, adopting more environmentally-friendly
designs and technologies and improving the environmental
awareness of its employees, partners and customers, so as
to minimize the impacts of the business of the Company
on the environment. For details, please refer to the 2021
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company,
which will be published on the website of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).
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31/F, Gloucester Tower &5

HLB B &<t E5% A MRAF
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street EITH115E

Central Hong Kong B E%
HETITRE3E

To the shareholders of
SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 65 to 151, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Boards (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

Independent Auditors’ Report
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our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
BRELEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRNESNAEEBERETER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

8 7 B W SRR R B B

Refer to Notes 3, 5(b) and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

F2HREMBRRMES - 5(b)Kk21

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross
trade receivables of approximately RMB85,347,000
and provision for impairment of approximately
RMB2,970,000.

R20215F12A310 - ES£EHEESHRKFIERED
A R #85,347,0007T K {8 # # #) A R #2,970,000

7'_]:0

Management performed periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of different
customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation
of outstanding balances, and on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate
the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on trade receivables included:
BMEBEREEHE SR WSIRNRERTENIERF
B

o Understanding the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its
procedures on periodic review of trade
receivables and expected credit losses assessment
on trade receivables;

s HMEBENTZGEEERZRER BEHTHSE
FREKE SERLTHERESERCRBEE
BEEF:

o Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade receivables as at year end to the
underlying financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;

o  HRMEMBLEHEMERBRENFRE HEKIA
B BR R 1B 00 - IS F R 1% 48 B 15 00 B SR 1T R
#t

RENKERERAE —T-—FFH
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B % BED 3R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

MEEREE(E)

FAREXEE (&)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETNNEEFERETSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables (continued)

5 EWRRERER G (&)

Refer to Notes 3, 5(b) and 21 to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

F2REEVMBRRMEES - 5(b)K21(4&)

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the expected
credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.
BAFEINzEE RARRMEEEERE THE
ZRWF IR EN G REREIREEANH G K
flrgte

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

J Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understanding on-going business relationship
with the customers based on trade records,
checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the
customers; and

e RMERESTHEUNFEREAHNEREFHREK
RIEOARR WAL HIBREEETRENRE
MRBEE SR TRETPNFEXEBRE &
BEFHNES REREECHEREMBE

J Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit losses provisioning methodology,
examining the key data inputs on a sample basis
to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both
historical and forward-looking information, used
to determine the expected credit losses.

e HATEHMEEEFRREBEHENEEN MERE
F%i&i%{%ﬁimkéﬂ VATl B ﬁélﬁ&n%l&

TERETEHEESEBEMEANRKRRE (BEE
EE)SZHI EMER) o

We found that the management judgment and
estimates used to assess the recoverability of the trade
receivables and determine the impairment provision to
be supportable by available evidence.

BHFIBEE T E SRR AT Y B M K 2 E R E
BEMERNEREEAHEG AT ERAER FF-
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B &% B A RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (“Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Hitt&EH

EEHHAMENER EMENERFR
TEENER ETREREMBHRRK
BB RS (THMER]) -

BPHGEEMBERRNEERTNREREME
£t BRI A H i B REAEANRE

£ A
K55 o

REAHEEMBRERNTFZM S HAM
METEHNEEMER YRKZ B
ERRTEESMBRRIBMERZE
BPRESNTHREEEAT BB LE
BXE - fWEERRMETHIIE  RFMR
RREMERFEEARERL R
BREZFE - LML) B EEA R
BE

EENERZEEERGSMBR
RNEME

EZAARBERS EAEESRM
BIER B 75 3R 5 22 R R & 78 1 R B A 32 3R
REREGAMBEERER  USHEAMBEIRER
FHEEMAFHRER  MEBEERR Y
ZHARMES NEREMBRERIFE
RGP ERMEBNEANRERAL

ERBUSAMBHREN EFAFTE B
SEFELLENE N WE (WER) B
BREAHENER YEAHELEES
EE (RIEEFHE EEBEBRIKL
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B % BED 3R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B M % BED 3RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BRBMBERGEMBHRROEE
(%)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committees,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Yau Wai Ip.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yau Wai Ip
Practising Certificate Number: P07849

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Hfb 2 m W= &R

%Am\/

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;Z2021F12H31H IF F/E
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR®T T ARETTT
Revenue KA 7 233,945 134,441
Cost of sales 5 & AR (195,070) (102,842)
Gross profit EF 38,875 31,599
Other revenue H U A 8 2,824 4,234
Other gains and losses Huaplhzs N E#E 9 2,945 965
Impairment losses under expected EHEEEEEATZ
credit loss model, net of reversal B ETE - B[O 11 (481) (2,352)
Loss on fair value change BRAFEFABED
of financial assets at fair value TRMEEATEED
though profit or loss B8 (13,462) -
Selling and distribution expenses HE NS (8,252) (7,128)
Administrative and general expenses 1TH & —#&FI X (23,889) (19,374)
Share of result of an associate DIREEE R RIEEA 19 (36) -
Finance costs BF 5 R AN 10 - (486)
Listing expenses EFmRZ - (10,246)
Loss before tax MREATE R 11 (1,476) (2,788)
Income tax expenses FriE T 12 (1,124) (369)
Loss for the year attributable to ZAATEEAEGEAESE
owners of the Company (2,600) (3,157)
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 EEE
Item that may be reclassified HE gt EH D BEEEm
subsequently to profit or loss: HH :
Exchange difference on translating  HEFINER 2 E X =
foreign operation (4,131) (761)
Other comprehensive loss FRHEMZEESE
for the year (4,131) (761)
Total comprehensive loss AAREEAELEAZEE
for the year attributable BER
to owners of the Company (6,731) (3,918)
Loss per share attributable ARAREEANEELEEBRER
to owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EXLEE(ARESD) 16 (0.23) (0.33)
FERRKEZERAERAT —ZB-—FF#K
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R R R

As at 31 December 2021 R20214F12H31H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M5 ARET T AREF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NE&E 17 88,804 59,715
Right-of-use assets B RRREEE 18 26,888 27,494
Interest in an associate R—HEBERF 2 19 2,964 =
Prepayments TE RIE 22 - 5,752
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE E 28 445 385
119,101 93,346
Current assets REBEE
Inventories Ve 20 31,276 17,994
Trade and bills receivables B 5 e W kIE & e R & 21 90,357 69,484
Prepayments, deposits and other AR FRIE  1Re R E M EKEIA
receivables 22 2,453 3,542
Financial assets at fair value through & AFEFABZNEREE
profit or loss 23 36,262 =
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITER 24 5,278 =
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RS 24 28,447 79,641
194,073 170,661
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables B RN RIERENER 25 38,011 19,946
Other payables and accruals H b A FRIE R BT E A 26 4,852 5,693
Deferred income EEWA 27 137 137
Tax payables JE A 718 48 196
43,048 25,972
Net current assets REBEEFE 151,025 144,689
Total assets less current liabilities EEERGHEE 270,126 238,035
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred income EIEU A 27 547 684
Net assets EEFE 269,579 237,351

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R R

As at 31 December 2021 R20214F12H31H

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B &E ARBT R ARETT

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital AR A
Reserves G

Total equity R

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 March 2022.

Chen Hua
PREESL 4

Director

Ex

The accompany notes from an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

30 4,152 3,497
265,427 233,854
269,579 237,351

R2022F3 298 EE =g it R IRET)
o

Zhu Jianqin
REELL
Director

Ex
BEM < Y E B A SR A M RERZ — &7

FERBEZERARAT —B-—F£§
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBE R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRAEE AR
Share Share Capital Statutory Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
s RHEE uN:i] EERME EXGfE REEF fRs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
(Note (a))
(HizQ)
At1 January 2020 001818 670 35,665 61,274 11,383 (121) 35475 144,306
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (3,157) (3,157)
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ FREMRESE - - - - (761) - (761)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ENEABRLE - - - - (761) (3,157) (3918)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERDITRE - - - 831 - (831) -
Capitalisation issue (Note 30(b)) AR ET (KFE300) 1,944 (1,94) - - - - -
Issue of shares pursuant to global offering 1R 2 HRHEEARH (K30
(Note 30(c)) 883 116,906 - - - - 117,789
Transaction costs attributable to issue o RIE2HEERTRAEERFRE
shares under global offering - 22,211 - - - - 22.211)
Waiver of amounts due to shareholders %8 EFREFE - - 1,385 - - - 1,385
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 #2020612A318 R2021E1418 3497 128416 62,659 12,174 (882) 31,487 237,351
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (2,600) (2,600)
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ FREMZEFE - - - - (4,131) - (4,131)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAGELE - - - - (4,131) (2,600) (6,731)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRI RE - - - 1,263 = (1,263) =
Issue of shares under placing (Note 30(d)) R EEE %4 TR{ (Fi30(d)) 655 39,561 - - - - 40,216
Transaction costs attributable toissue of ~ BEREXTRAEETZHA
shares under placing - (1,257) - - - - (1,257)
At 31 December 2021 R2021£12831A 4,152 166,720 62,659 13437 (5,013) 27,624 269,579
Notes: B &E -

(@) Subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC shall (@) MRIBHEIRQEDE AR RIR A B LA

appropriate 10% of its annual statutory net profit (after BRABIAKEFEEEMEF (KEEE
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund IAAFEREER)B10%%5 8 205 E
account in accordance with the PRC Company Law. When the BEHRF WMZHESERERZERBR
balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s share ANH50% @ R 2 R BIEERE — T
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory B-REFESHER EZTRFHESAH
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to ERE AT FEFEIEE -

increase capital after proper approval.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GREREMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;Z2021F12H31H IF F/E
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T ARETT
Operating activities ReEES
Loss before tax BREI AT AR (1,476) (2,788)
Adjustments for: MATIEEELHFAR:
Depreciation of property, plant and  #7% H= & REITE
equipment 17 6,673 6,369
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFAEEERTE 18 606 450
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE FELREZ
plant and equipment EBE (W) 9 148 (7)
Provision for/(reversal of provision for) %138 2 A= B & 18
impairment loss under ECL model RHAIE TN 2B EEE
on: B (BERE)
— trade receivables — B 5 WA 11 478 2,355
— other receivables — H e FRIB 11 3 3)
Reversal of write-down on inventories 17 & #f s % B 11 = (125)
Bank interest income HRITH BUWA 8 (893) (1,271)
Dividend income on financial assets X AFETAEBRZ SREE
at FVTPL B A 8 (253) -
Finance costs EUR I 10 = 486
Loss on fair value change of financial & QA F{EF ABHRZ S REE
assets at FVTPL ZAFEEFHER 13,462 -
Share of result of an associate DIEHE R RIEE 19 36 -
Exchange gain, net bE 3 Uk a5 )5 58 9 (3,043) -
Operating cash inflows before LEEEPINLER
movements in working capital mA 15,741 5,466
Increase in inventories ZEEN (13,282) (217)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 e W FRIE & R R R
bills receivables (1) m (21,351) 12,762
Decrease in prepayments, deposits  JBFRIE ~ & & H At fE W Z0E
and other receivables Rk > 1,052 64
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills 2 5 &~ 5018 & fE N E 5
payables #wn, Crd) 18,065 (10,447)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables E fth f& {5 2B & fE =1 &
and accruals (R 4>) /18 n (814) 1,228
Decrease in deferred income iR TE YL AR (137) (137)
Cash (used in)/generated from e Es) (TR /FiiRR<
operating activities (726) 8,719
Income tax paid BT (1,332) (2,935)
Net cash (used in)/generated from eEsSESE) (TR e
operating activities ReFRE (2,058) 5,784

RERKZRERAAE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GREREMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12H31H IF FE

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE AR®T T ARETT
Investing activities RETH
Purchases of items of property, plant EE¥¥ MENEEEE
and equipment (30,172) (3,654)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  MENREBMEIE
plant and equipment 14 10
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank SR ITFEZR (M) D
deposits (5,278) 2,544
Purchases of land use right %S+ (FE A 18 = (10,763)
Prepayment of property, plant and Y2 BB MR 2 TER
equipment = (5,752)
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BB Z A FETABRZ
TREE (75,929) -
Net proceeds from disposal of HEZRAFEFABRY
financial assets at FVTPL TRMEEZFEHRIBFE 25,538 -
Dividend income received B iR 2 A 253 -
Capital injections of investment in an & & & N aFl 21 &
associate 19 (3,000) -
Interest received 2 A B 893 1,271
Net cash used in investing activities ¥ & & EFr A 4 /%58 (87,681) (16,344)
Financing activities mEEE
Repayment of bank and other EBRERTEREMEES
borrowings - (21,678)
Share issue under global offering EIRBEE THRMDET - 117,789
Share issue under placing B EIE N A IR (D 21T 40,216 -
Payment of issue costs X fNETER (1,257) (18,822)
Interest paid ERNFES) - (486)
Net cash generated from financing  REE /EEFTSIR & /55
activities 38,959 76,803
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁ@&iﬁ%i’;{ﬁ%
cash equivalents w1 ANE EE (50,780) 66,243
Cash and cash equivalents at the i%ﬂzfﬁi&iﬁ/\“f‘i%
beginning of the year 79,641 14,226
Effect of foreign exchange rate RS s B
changes (414) (828)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRKZIRE& NIECEEY
of the year 28,447 79,641
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited
liability. The registered office address is at 89 Nexus Way,
Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9009, Cayman Islands.
The head office and principal place of the Group is at
No.2 Jiangshan Road, Meicheng Town, Jiande County,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"), respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of faux leather chemicals. The
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) have been listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) by way of international
placing and Hong Kong public offer (collectively the
“Global Offering”) on 12 March 2020 (the “Listing
Date”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the presentation currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousands (“RMB’000”) except otherwise indicated.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”). The directors
of the Company adopted RMB as presentation currency
as the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the
PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
2.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first
time for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark —
Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”)
of the International Accounting Standards Board issued
in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale”
when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 2021*

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-
20202

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to IFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE R HR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting policies which
conform with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decision made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis excepted for
financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets at FVTOCI
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements are determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and companies
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’'s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which
qualifies as business combination, except for those
acquisitions which qualify as a common control
combination and are therefore accounted for using the
merger accounting.

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange and, all acquisition-related costs are
expensed. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at
the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable. Impairment testing of the investments
in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE R HR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’'s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any:

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating
leases; and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXSFTHEHMESE)
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued) ME- BERRLZEE)

BEMFTEZTIGAAERES
NEBOEMEE R AR E TR EE
(g ) HERR. -

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building held for own use over the shorter of the unexpired lease term and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 20 years after the date of

completion

FERRET AE MR E R B AL ST AT e A HA (BN B 52 T B #1220
F) AR ERHLE)

Machinery and equipment 5-10 years

Heas Mkt 5ZE104F

Motor vehicles 5 years

E 54

Office equipment and others 3-5 years

WNRE R EAM 354

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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mE R HR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating until to which
the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All reqular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debts instruments/receivables
subsequent measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income (continued)
Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments/receivables classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes
in the carrying amount of these debt instruments/
receivables are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI
reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised in
profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments/receivables. When
these debt instruments/receivables are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is disclosed
separately in Consolidated Statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and bills receivables, deposit and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognized
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessments,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

2021 Annual Report

F2021F12H31HIFFE
3.

BEASHHERBES)

ERMIAE)

THEE (/&)

TR EEREE)

EERBARIEIN(E)

e FERBRMINATIZIEEZENEKR

= flnEE S = KIEEMN

1?%AE@1*I§\L%U?$,HHEK¢Ei
=gt 4

TEI?E'JT\?T'J“E)J %E,HH?H%@ZEW
ABITEHEBEENENIRET

B

s EBARERENERIAHRE
KB

o BEBAEE LBEIRMREN
ERKFEMEAINES B2
BEHABTEBEHRETMNENKN
N

Tim L A SR AEER
E - HEANREEBEI0K  AlE
SRk BV HERIARE KIgE
HASERESEYFEBEFNE
FER BRI IR - BIERI ©

BEWMEXFM MEBEIZARKRS
AR ETAEKEERR BAER
ABRZEE LA ZEERR V15
BRERBEEZE M MERTIE
HoAERTAEEREBEREZE
ERR  ((VEEORBREIE: ()EX
AERHRNBHEER IBITHALOE
EREZEIE R (iii) 48 85 A i ZE A
ELZZ%'JHﬂZ = E |3¢1 1E|/T¢\
ABTTHENRERER T 288
BEEKERIEE  AESERE
BB TAERNITHINB2ER %%&?&%
BIEELR K EEAREZEE
[2.f&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables
that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE R HR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
processing, labour and indirect overheads, and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the government
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants
are presented under “other revenue”.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
nonoccurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or services (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
services.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Sales of faux leather chemicals

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts, rebates and returns.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of IFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee

For a contract contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease component, the
Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

e  the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

J the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with joint operations, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at of the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’'s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees in the Company’s subsidiaries operating
in the PRC are members of retirement benefits scheme
(the “PRC RB Schemes"”) operated by the local municipal
government. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing
and future retired employees of the PRC subsidiaries. The
only obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect to
the PRC RB Scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the PRC RB Schemes. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at
the earlier of when the Group entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when
it recognises any related restructuring costs.

AR RME

B E2021F 12831 H IFFZE
BEASHHERBE®)
EEFEF

G R 18 B 18 7 K SR E H SR IR AT &
B9 7 5%

o FEL FFHFR mAEMH
FORKET Bl R IE R B M KA
DREEBRFEERKRENFREAR
AeMERANRABEENTEBRE
K- AZEeBHmERENR-

AEBRBEARGIEXBESAERIA
HrB BB R R E BRI 1
NESRAKBAGFE( BRE A
EDN-HEREREEAFHEZX A
DHEL YRR BERBEESAEZR
AENMEEBRaNE - RERFELZ
BEEAGSEZEENR ABUE
BZRESHA - AKBZRBREEFR
FsRE e EIEARS 2 BRER A -

ARARPEEEZMBARZEE
8 T BUR & i 2 SRR R A 8
(TRBIRKEHFTE]) 2B 77
MR AGEAE P BN EARMER
BEARKERKREEOEARBHNEST-
B BB 2 Rl st A BUR KR A G 8 2
ME—BERNEPBERKEREEIR
TEZ K e NIRRT B AE RA 2
BRI T B B 1R 2 ek o

REBER
RIEBANZABRASEER T HERE
O IE1EH 2 B4 KRR
BARARER (ARFERE)HER -

FERBEZERARAT —B-—F£§

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.

2021 Annual Report

HZE2021F12H31HIFFE
3.

ERETBERBE®R)

N
RmEEEREEEE 2T HRE
B A ERINEEEE AN 2 B (S
BIVETZRPGER B ZRITE
KHER - MNMEHR UINETIEZ
EMERRZAZEREXRERNR
H-RANTEIIRANIINESEZIE
E¥BEBREFTATEERZRTE
RENBE - INEIZE LK AFTE
ZIFEWIAR BRABHME -

RENEHHREEEREMELZ
R EENHEL A RS AR

WEINGEEMBHREAMS  AREXE
BeBEERABRERERRIHAT
EXMESAEEZZ2IEE(AA
R¥) - WA RFIXIAR RBAARTIE
KipE RIFMNER KRR E &
HERT BRARZERAZER-
PEAEYZBE(NA)NEM2E K
mAER WRE N FHE TR RS
Rito



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Research and development expense

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials and salaries where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Other development expenditure does not meet
these criteria is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Related parties transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the reporting
entity.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ir e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXASTHERBMESE)
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties transactions (continued) BELRS (&
(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (i) MHEALATEMEE  BNEEn
following conditions applies: (continued) NEE G (&)
(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) ZFZFEBHYRRA—F=TH&a%E
third party. B
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy, " REBERAF=FERBHNAED
and the other entity is an associate of the third ¥ ME—EBARZFE=FE
entity. L0k kNI
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan v) ZERAMASEIEAEEA
for the benefit of employees of either the BN ERENEES N =ML
Group or an entity related to the Group. If %ﬁﬂﬁﬂmﬂd’iﬂ (ENESE PN g
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring RiZETE - BB AR EE T
employers are also related to the Group. ERZNEE B B R -
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (Vi) FZEBRER()FTEERIE A =Sk
a person identified in (i). FHEFEH o
(vi) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant i) RO)@FTHEBIMATEHEREE
influence over the entity or is a member of the AR BN BZER(k%ER
key management personnel of the entity (or of WERE)FEERENE -

a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (viii) ZE BN AENID M ER %
which it is a part, provides key management B B R RmAEE g AEE S
personnel services to the Group or to the NARBEFEEBABRS
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family BRI A TH IR ST RIE TR
members who may be expected to influence, or be BB LA EZENATHRBENTE
inflecting by, that person in their dealings with the entity. HZZERNATZERNFE -

A transaction is considered to be a related party EREEER ZRHREBRERNE TR
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or AIZER S SRR REERRS -

obligations between related parties.

1 O 6 SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the directors of the Company
are classified as a separate allocation of retained
earnings within the equity section of the statements of
financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3 to consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimations uncertainty

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Provision of ECL for financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Management estimates the amount of loss allowance for
ECL on financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost based on the credit risk of the respective financial
instrument. The loss allowance amount is measured as
the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows after
taking into consideration of expected future credit loss
of the respective financial instrument. The assessment
of the credit risk of the respective financial instrument
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty. When
the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
a material impairment loss or a material reversal of
impairment loss may arise, accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S B 7 3R &R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F12H31H IFF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4. ERGFHHE RS (&)
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Write-down of inventories FE MU

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FE TR AN N 3y 245 B SR A A B4 2R
realisable value at the end of the reporting period. SHREME B 2 BKE D BR - 7] 215 %
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the BERBGETEERGETTEHEEKRA
estimated selling price less the estimated costs necessary BEr EEEBIERBERINREEE
to make the sale. The management estimates the net B EER MR GHet1EE R &I15%
realisable value for inventories based primarily on the Bofboh BEIEENR SRS HRILZME
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. In RMEREERNFE U HER S
addition, the management performs an inventory review EHUBIFE °

on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting
period and assess the need for write-down of inventories.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BERREERFERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Categories of financial instruments SR TEER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Financial assets at amortised cost REBER LA ENESREE

— Trade receivables — & 5 WA 82,377 50,419
— Deposits and other receivables — e R E b EWFRIA 54 4
— Pledged bank deposits —EHERRITENX 5,278 -
- Bank balances and cash —RITEHR RS 28,447 79,641
116,156 130,064

Bills receivables at FVTOCI BAFEIAEMCEEBAN
EWEE 7,980 19,065
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABENEREE 36,262 -

Financial liabilities at amortised cost R AT ENEREF

— Trade and bills payables —B9RNFIERENZER 38,011 19,946
— Other payables and accruals —HibEMNRIERERTE R 3,614 5,693
41,625 25,639

gengzreRas —2--s£8 109
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REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
5.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables and other
payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operation.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are market risk (including interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk and equity price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s management reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below:

(a) Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates and equity price.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk for the
Group’s bank balances and pledge bank deposits
are considered immaterial as at 31 December 2021
and 2020. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
presented for interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group
is expose to the foreign currency risk arising
from financial instruments which are primarily
denominated in United Stated Dollars (“USD") from
its ordinary operating activities, these are not the
functional currency of the group entities to which
these transactions relate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

As at each reporting date, foreign currency
denominated financial assets, translated into RMB
closing rates, are as follows:

B E2021F 12831 H IFFZE

5. BEREEBERBEK#)

(a)

% b (45

S B ()

REREBE AIMNEFHERIR
ARBUMERL BN THEE
I

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables: B S RUGK
- USD —%7T 1,608 267

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
as at the end of each of the reporting period to
a reasonably possible change in foreign currency
exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s post-tax loss (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets) and
the Group’s entities.

TRIUTRE B BRI F A
AR R R TR T
AEEBIEEAR AR BT
S OMETE % 1135 4 52 7T AL B
HEE (MR A AENATE
#8))-

Increase/
(decrease) in
rate of Impact on
foreign post-tax
currency  (loss)/profit
INESEE = (7|
tH Al
(T F2) B
At 31 December 2021 72021%12A831H
If RMB weakens against USD i AR R ETRE 5 68
If RMB strengthens against USD M AR R EZTHAE (5) (68)
At 31 December 2020 72020512 H318
If RMB weakens against USD M AR HETRE 5 13
If RMB strengthens against USD MARBHETHAE (5) (13)
FERRKEZERAERAT —ZB-—FF#K
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL.
For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in
the Stock Exchange, the management of the Group
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. The Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 5% higher/lower, the post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would decrease/increase
by RMB1,813,000 (2020: nil) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its trade and bill receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. The carrying amounts represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with pledged bank deposits and
bank balances since they are substantially deposited
at state-owned banks and other medium or large-
sized listed banks. The credit risks on bill receivables
are limited because the counterparties are reputable
banks. Management does not expect that there will
be any significant losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F12H31H IFF/E

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BERREEEERBEKE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERR (&)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management
makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits
based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management
believes that there are no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and
deposits and thus provision of allowance of ECL
of approximately RMB3,000 (2020: reversal of
allowance RMB3,000) was recognised.

Trader receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECL for all trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss
allowance for the trade receivables was determined
as follows. The ECL below also incorporated
forward-looking information.

HttBEUABEREE

MEMEKRZERZENS B
BEERBBALERE BAKL
BRAERTEENATEEE
B TR AN IE R IR
B9 AT U [ 1E & B R A - & 1R
BiEE BXTBERIANR %%
SREZEERBRY EBEEEN-
HE2021F12A31B L F &
AEEFHEMELGRIBRIES
MBI EEEE  WERESE
EEBEEN AREK300T
(20204 - #EEIE M A K 3,000
JL)°

=), 1. ¢/ 8"

AREBRABETT AR BRI
HELEAFEISRATRETIRIAME
EBE ZEAARFIAEES
FEUGRIRE R PR EEER -

720214 20205128310 B
25 & WK IR B &5 18 B A B OE 40
T A TREEEBBITAAR
HEIEEHS o

Past due but not impaired

ERBERRE
within 91 to over
Current  90days 180 days 180 days Total
90HA 91Z180H H®iB180H @t
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H
Expected loss rate (%) EHEEE(%) 2.08 7.46 33.34 3.48
Gross carrying amount BEEE(ARETT)
(RMB'000) 50,135 25,381 6,511 3,320 85,347
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EREE (ARETT) 529 486 1,107 2,970
FRENREZERERAT —TZ—FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Trader receivables (continued)

HZE2021F12H31HIFFE

5. BKEREEBRSEREE#)

(b) FERRE (&)

EZEWRHE (&)

Past due but not impaired

ERBERRE
within 91 to over
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BE 90AR 91E1808B #EiB180R @t
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A31H
Expected loss rate (%) REHBEE(%) 0.07 0.09 0.96 48.29 4.84
Gross carrying amount BEEE(ARETT)
(RMB'000) 26,290 18,590 2,926 5177 52,983
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EREGE (ARBTT) 19 17 28 2,500 2,564
Liquidity risk () REELERE

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
trade payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flows management. The
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level
of liquid assets and committed lines of funding
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

Management monitors the cash flows forecasts of
the Group in meeting its liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group may be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on
which the Group may be required to pay.

2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. M¥EREEEERBE#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (o0 RBELEKE)
Weight
average Ondemand Over 1year Over 2 years Total Total
effective  orwithin and within  and within undiscounted  carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5years cashflows  amount

nEYH  RERY  BEIFE BEMFE ARRERE

ERAZ  MER FR MSER REHE  AREE
%  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
% ARBTT ARMTL ARETR ARBTT ARETR

At 31 December 2021 R2021128318

Non-derivative financial liabilties HTEERAR

Trade and bills payables BARMNTERENRE - 38,011 - - 38,011 38,011

Other payables and accruals Hth e FIE REER - 3,614 - - 3,614 3,614
41,625 - - 41,625 41,625

At 31 December 2020 20206124318

Non-derivative financial liabilties HiEemag

Trade and hills payables BIRMNTERENRE - 19,946 - - 19,946 19,946

Other payables and accruals Hth e FIE RETER - 5,693 - - 5,693 5,693
25,639 - - 25,639 25,639

(d) Fair value of financial instruments d £ZRITENAFEE

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and R HEL NP EFE S

financial liabilities that are measured at fair rEFCREERSHERES

value on a recurring basis AR A

The Group’s financial assets are measured at fair REB G REENZREHKRIK

value at the end of each reporting period. In ANEEFE - WNMEst A FEER

estimating the fair value, the Group uses market- REBEFEHAE Y MBI ERE

observable data to the extent it is available. The o TERIBHAEBNMABTEZRE

following table gives information about how the fair SREBEANFEBEZER

values of these financial assets are determined.

RERKERERAT —B--FFH 115
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REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021:
Level 1
E—R
RMB’000

MBEREEEBEREEK &)

(d £2BMIENAFEE)
BEEMBEENL N FHETEZ
rEELSHEERETMEMEZ
NFE(F)
R202112 A31B 2 A EEA:

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-R E=& #at

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTIT ARETRTE ARETT

Financial assets BAFEFABRN
at FVTPL eWMEE
Listed equity securities R A& 5

36,262

= = 36,262

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(i)  the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid and ask prices respectively;

(i) the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flow analysis using observable
and/or unobservable inputs); and

(iii) the fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is performed using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments for
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing
models for optional derivatives.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

(e)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The management considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
at amortised cost recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, net of bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits and total equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and
retained earnings. The gearing ratio is not presented
as the Group does not have borrowings as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

B E2021F 12831 H IFFZE

5. BEREEBERBEK#)

(d) EBMTIENAFE (&)

(e)

RERKZRERAAE

REEMEEL R FHEFEZ

rEETHMEEREHMEMEZ

RVE(E)

s FMAFEFEIBEME
FAEEXBEREETS
P CRFBE)EREL

s FE_ARFEFEDKRE
FE—RAABREREAIN |
BER(AMER) B (BIA
EBRiTE)BEEXRER
EFBABERSL &

s F=ZRARFEFEDRE
SEANIERBAIBET S
BENEEXBEH AR
BRINABRGABE) N
fRERMSH -

ERERL R mREZ
BEKAER cEREER TR
BREZEEEREAFERS -

EXREBER
AEBEEEANBRERBBIR
HRE - REMBERBEA®
KA WHEFREERNEBIA
B BEARRA  REE 2 BER
S EREFRITTE -

AEBZEARBOIEESFH
(HBRRITEHR KRS ) BEMA
RITFER MR REE ARG
HEA(BEEBRITRARRE
BF) ARAEBMN2021F K&
2020F12A31B W EEE - K
YREINEEGFER-

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
6.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SEGMENT INFORMATION

()

(i)

Operating segment information

The Group’s most senior executive management
has been identified as the chief operating decision
maker who reviews the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The Group’s most senior executive management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Group’s most senior executive management
assesses the performance based on a measure of loss
after tax and considers all businesses to be included in
a single operating segment.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of faux leather chemicals. Information
reported to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the
operating result of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete
operating segment financial information is available.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is
presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s operation is principally in the PRC and
all its non-current assets are situated in the PRC.

The Group's revenue are derived from the PRC and
overseas (i.e. Mexico, Turkey and Vietnam) based on
the location of goods delivered as follows:

HZE2021F12H31HIFFE
6.

DEER
(i) BEIBER

(i)

AEBRSTHREEESERL
ERRE BRI ANKEN AR
BE UFERERDEER-
AEESSTRERECREZ

EHREBERLEDE -

AEESSTHEEBRIEMRAT
BRREBEFEFERE IS
FIEEBMANE —RENED -

AEETERFRERHEAT
B2m R AKEERET
BYEDHNEED BT BKE
B MmaARERSTREEE
E2RAHDEEREAFERIRD
EREIAGEBERLEEE-
Rt WEE 5 EE D EBE R

I E R
AEEEERTEZE  BEP
BFRBEEDMNHE -
AEEBTEREINEIEZA
FOEEERBEE)EENKRA
BIRNEEEImT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AR T T
The PRC =s) 229,514 132,107
Overseas BN 4,431 2,334
233,945 134,441

2021 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

(iii) Information about a major customer

Revenue from a customer during the years
contributing individually over 10% of the Group’s
revenue is as follows:

T HRVER(#)

(i) FHEERFHER
o & F VBB R AR B B B
B10%M— AR FHKALT :

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31MBLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Company A NAEIA

* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

REVENUE 7.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
from the sales of faux leather chemicals, net of discounts,
sales return and sales related taxes during the years.

29,711 =5

* HERALRERER AR
AEB#E10% ©

A

WATEFARHEEATELEMREK
K EMGRIR (MR HERE R
SHEMRBNIR) -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A8318LLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTET

Revenue from contracts with customers: KB & FE& L2 WA :

Recognised at a point in time FOTR — I [E] B i 57
Sales of faux leather chemicals HEATLELER

The Group has applied the practical expedient under
IFRS 15 so that transaction price allocated to unsatisfied
performance obligations under contracts for sales of faux
leather chemicals are not disclosed as such contracts have
an original expected duration of one year or less.

233,945 134,441

AEEDREBERS B REERF5
SERAERERE AL REED
EEATE(CERHERHNRBETE
HWEENRZER REEZEFAH
MRFEHAMR A —FHAT -

FERBEZERARAT —B-—F£§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF
8. OTHER REVENUE 8. HflA
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEF T
Bank interest income RTT A B UA 893 1,271
Government grants (note) B B (BT =) 1,432 2,317
Dividend income on financial assets at &2 F{EE ABzE 2
FVTPL EREEZREBA 253 -
Sundry income FMEIEUW A 246 646
2,824 4,234

note: Government grants represent various form of subsidies
granted to the Group by the local government authorities
in the PRC for compensation of expenses incurred by the
Group. These grants are generally made for business support
and awarded to enterprises on a discretionary basis. The
Group received these government grants in respect of its
investments in the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

B &L+ BT #8 Bh 5 P B 4 77 BT # B A AX
SERENSERANMHR AR
MEARBEELNER - XS/
—RAREBXE IRBEETL
K- ARERERNPENREERR
ZERIFE) - AR EHEA
B ARBITIRERIRER

9. HuthsmKER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®EF T

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEDME BELEEZ

plant and equipment (E518) W (148) 7
Exchange gain, net bE 5 U e ) F 58 3,043 958
Bad debt recovery W =] 52 BR 50 -
2,945 965

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. BAFERR A

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ETFTT
Interest on bank and other borrowings B A F NREEENRIT R
wholly repayable within five years EMEE 25 E - 486

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

11. BRBLAIE B

B E2021F 12831 H IFFZE

BRELAT B R TS (FEA R T &

THIEEY
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEF T
Auditors’ remuneration 1% AT BN & 850 756
Listing expenses EmRAX - 10,246
Cost of inventories sold FrERFEKA 195,070 102,967
Depreciation: e
— Depreciation of property, plant and —%% - WE MEEHEITE
equipment 6,673 6,369
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ —{f REEEFE 606 450
7,279 6,819
Less: amount included in cost of sales & : 51 A 84 Al 28 B 2018 (4,910) (4,268)
2,369 2,551
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment 548/ (¥R ) ~5|HEE 2
loss under ECL model on: FEHEEEEEAET
2B EE
— trade receivables — & FEWFKIA 478 2,355
— other receivables — H fib e W IE 3 (3)
Directors’ remuneration E==E a0 1,173 1,048
Staff costs (excluding directors’ ETRA (TEREEEHM)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries, allowances and bonus — L& - & 286 R IEAL 16,624 11,820
— contributions to retirement benefits  — 3B /K18 FI 5+ 2 £t 2k
schemes 2,378 1,404
19,002 13,224
Less: amounts included in cost of sales ¥ : 51 A 855 A% 2N B FX I8 (6,369) (5,026)
12,633 8,198
Reversal of write-down on inventories 17 & #fi i #% [ol = (125)
Research and development expenses  fff 255 2 9,276 7,453
Expenses for short term lease REBHERX 365 330
RERFERERAT —T=-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

12. FRIBHiBE X

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTF T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BB 1 PR SA
("EIT") ([¥mBHR])
— Current income tax —BNERFT1S 8 1,184 685
Deferred tax EEFIE (60) (316)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBY HBE 1,124 369

The PRC

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its
operations in the PRC was calculated at tax rate of 25%
on the assessable profits for the reporting period, based
on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Zhejiang Sunlight Material Technology Co., Ltd. is
approved as “high and new technology enterprise”
and accordingly, it is subject to a reduced preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% for the reporting
period.

Cayman Islands, BVI and Hong Kong

No Provision for taxation has been recognised for
companies incorporated in the Cayman Islands, BVI and
Hong Kong as they are not subject to any tax during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Withholding Tax in Mainland China (“"WHT")

According to the New Corporate Income Tax Law (“New
EIT Law"), distribution of profits earned by companies in
Mainland China since 1 January 2008 to foreign investors
is subject to withholding tax of 5% or 10%, depending
on the country of incorporation of the foreign investors,
upon the distribution of profits to overseas incorporated
immediate holding companies.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Withholding Tax in Mainland China (“WHT")
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the retained earnings of the
Group’s PRC subsidiary not yet remitted to holding
company incorporated outside of the PRC, for which no
deferred income tax liability had been provided, were
approximately RMB63,290,000 (2020: RMB51,922,000).
For this unrecognised amount, the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The income tax expense during the reporting period can
be reconciled to the loss before tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

RE M BRRME

B E2021F 12831 H IFFZE

12. FREFHBEXZ (&)

B Pt TR ([ FRBL D) (42)

R2021F12 8318 » NEB R B
A A iw AR EE F AR BRSNS A 1
R BIMRE &BF (W ER AR
FISHBE)NAARKE3,290F T
(20205 : ARR¥51,922F JT ) B %
ﬂﬁwéﬁﬁﬁﬁ N BB ST
HEEZEE0AKHE BEREESR
RATREAE AT TE R AR R #E [a]

BEMANFASRAX A EES B
Ko Bofh 2 W s 2R P8 BR AR AT BT 1R
RIAE -

income as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR®ETFTT
Loss before tax B B A E5 18 (1,476) (2,788)
Tax at applicable tax rate applicable to %3 /7 48 B8 51 A R 1% )i 71| &Y
profits in the jurisdiction concerned @A K EH T IE 926 576
Tax effect of share of result of an FE1h — eI B & R B B M TS
associate - 9 _
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ ] #0784 B 5% &) ¢ 75 52 &
for tax purposes 2,202 1,206
Tax effect of income not taxable for  HERFHU A BTG ZE

tax purposes (697) (1)
Effect attributable to the additional 55 B AT 3% Ak 7K A8 FE A9 BE 4
qualified tax deduction relating to BERMEREHNTE

research and development costs (1,736) (1,367)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses  KRIERHIAFBIBORIETE 1,210 411
Tax concession RIBR % (790) (456)

1,124 369

FERBEZERARAT —B-—F£§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of i&%ﬁﬂWK%BﬁTEEEEH‘MEH
the Company (including emoluments for services as ARBEZFENHES(BEKEEARD
employees/directors of the Group prior to becoming the ﬁ%%{ﬁ%$%ﬁ%/ﬁ$ﬁ@ﬁ&ﬁ%
directors of the Company) by entities comprising the )T :
Group during the reporting period are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021

124

BE201EN2ANBLEE
Salaries,
allowance Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonus  contribution Total
Fe 2N
Ezxne  REVEAN BEEL BAGELR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®TR AR%TRT AR®TR AR%TR
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Chen Hua RERE - 274 - 15 289
Ms. Liu Jing ey Gn - - - - _
Ms. Zhu Jiangin REELL - 271 - - 271
Mr. Li Xiangyu (note (i) BrFa s (W) - 258 - 16 274
Ms. Wong Yee Nor (note (ii) TR L () = - - - -
Mr. Wen Yongwen (note (ii)) R (M) - 20 - 1 21
Mr. Gu Jianguo (note (iv)) BB AE (EW) - 12 - = 12
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors:
Mr. Tian Jingyan (note (v) RaE (HEWY) 100 - - - 100
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen (note (vi) ﬂ,ﬁﬂ (Hzi) 100 - - - 100
Ms. Yu Zhen (note (vii) B 82t (i vii 100 - - = 100
300 841 - 32 1,173

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 13. EEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2020
HE200E12831B1LEE
Salaries,
allowance Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonus  contribution Total
e 2
ExHe  REDEA BELL RS )

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR

Executive directors: BOEE:
Mr. Chen Hua RELE - 256 - 25 281
Ms. Liu ling B h+ : ) _ . )
Ms. Zhu Jiangin REBELL - 285 - - 285
Mr. Li Xiangyu (note (i)) BrFas (M) - 270 - 26 29
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Tian Jingyan (note (v)) BREELE (HEW) 60 = = = 60
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen (note (vi)) il 5 58 4 (Bt E(vi)) 66 - - = 66
Ms. Yu Zhen (note (vii) e 8 &t (HEE(viD 60 - - - 60
186 811 - 51 1,048
The executive directors’ emoluments shown were mainly IR TESHNNETESLNEES
for their service in connection with the management of AR E IR NN 7 N ANE B SRS
the affairs of the Company and the Group.
During the reporting period, there were no amounts RERE HA A - 7N & B 37 4 1A) & = sk Mt
paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any VARSI  & = 5 BN A = 2 < 3k fE
of the highest paid individuals set out in Note 14 as EIBVE AN A S IN AN E B K 52
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BBt mE - NIREH A R E A
compensation for loss of office. Except for Ms. Wong Yee R+ INBEEERERREERE
Nor, there was no arrangement under which a director FE{aI e B ZHE ©

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
reporting period.

notes: Bt 5
(i)  Mr. Li Xiangyu has resigned on 24 November 2021. (i) BmFLEAENR2021F11H248 &t
£
(i) Ms. WONG Yee Nor was appointed as executive director (i) FEKFEL LT HR2021F7H308EXR
on 30 July 2021 and has resigned on 10 December 2021. EAHNITES  WE K2021F128
108 BHE -
During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. WONG HZE2021F12A831H IEFE» T4
Yee Nor agreed to waive her emolument of approximately X TRERNEZEHEHFHMOARE
RMB44,000. 44,0007T °
(iii)  Mr. WEN Yongwen was appointed as executive director on (i) B EAR20215F11 A24B8 EE
24 November 2021. ERAITESE -

rENZEZERERAT —2--—s48 |25



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 13. EEME (&)

Notes: (continued) MisE: (%)

(iv)  Mr. GU Jianguo was appointed as executive director on 10 (iv) FEEZEBILAER2021F12810HEZ
December 2021. FARMTES-

(vy  Mr. Tian Jingyan was appointed as independent (v) HEEELEN2020628108 &R
nonexecutive director on 10 February 2020 and has ERBIUIENITES - WH20224F1
resigned on 25 January 2022. A25H & fF -

(vi)  Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen was appointed as independent (viy IERLER2020052A 108 &R
non-executive director on 10 February 2020. FRBEIINTES -

(vii) Ms. Yu Zhen was appointed as independent non-executive (viiy M B 22 £ 72020F2 8108 B R (T
director on 10 February 2020 and has resigned on 25 BB IEMITEE - WN202261 4
January 2022. 25HBHE°

14. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. TEESHFMA LTS

INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals included 3 (2020: 3) HE2021F12A31BIEFEHN RS

executive directors of the Company for the year ended A TR BRE3%4 (20204 -

31 December 2021, details of whose emoluments are set 3B)ARRNAMITEE EMEF5E

out in Note 13. The emoluments of the remaining highest M 513 » & 2202112 A31H

paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2021 FFE B THRSHFMALDH2E
are 2 (2020: 2) respectively and individuals disclosed are (2020%F : 2B WIS HERLT -

as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ=Z12A318LLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind #4285 X E W& A 555 561
Contributions to retirement IR IRAE F 51 & R
benefits schemes 46 54
601 615
The number of remaining highest paid employees whose HIEN A TEE NS T 5= E
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows: B AEIT :

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A8318LLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,0005%8 7T 2 2

1 2 6 SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report



14. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. TEBRSHFMALTHEE (&)
INDIVIDUALS (continued)
The number of the senior management (excluding FHERUTEENSREEE(CT
directors) whose emoluments fell within the following BIEEE) BT :
bands is as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T 2 2
15. DIVIDENDS 15. KE
The Board does not recommend the payment of any EEEgTERZRMNEZ2021F &
dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December 2021 2020F12 A31B L FEMEMRE ©
and 2020.
16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BRE#E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

RE M BRRME

B E2021F 12831 H IFFZE

The calculation of the basic loss per share during the
period is based on the loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately RMB2,600,000
(2020: RMB3,157,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the period of
1,146,301,370 (2020: 951,369,863). Diluted loss per
share were same as the basic loss per share as there were
no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

HRNERERNEBEEDIBERAARESR
A FERNEBEENAR2,600,000
JC(20204 : A R ¥3,157,0007T ) &
HANLTREBTRENEFEHHE
1,146,301,3708% (20204F : 951,369,863
1) SR EE IS REANEER
[ JIHERE ZE20214 % 2020912 A
31HIEFEWEBEDBRITESLE
f% o

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Loss for the year attributable to owners 7 A @1 #E A A FE(LH FE N E51E
of the Company (RMB’000) (ARETT) (2,600) (3,157)
Weighted average number of ordinary 3@ A% hn#E FH9 8 (FA%)
shares ("000) 1,146,301 951,370
Basic loss per share (RMB cents) BRERNEE (ARES) (0.23) (0.33)
RENBEZERERAT —2--f8 |27/
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HZE2021F12H31HIFFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

17. V¥ -BERERE

Furniture,
fixtures
and officc  Plant and Motor Construction
Buildings equipment  machinery vehicles in progress Total
B RER BER
BF  BORE B RE  ERIE i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cost A&
At 1 January 2020 202061518 45,101 4,137 49,578 1,843 651 101,310
Additions NE 162 231 1,094 - 2,551 4,038
Transfer #i 437 155 2,257 - (2,849) -
Disposals RE - (68) - - - (68)
At 31 December 2020 and 2020124318 &

1 January 2021 2021461418 45,700 4,455 52,929 1,843 353 105,280
Additions NE 368 221 3,611 272 31,452 35,924
Transfer B - 11 1,870 = (1,881) -
Disposals RE - (2,145) (702) (193) - (3,040)
At 31 December 2021 120215124318 46,068 2,542 57,708 1,922 29,924 138,164
Accumulated depreciation ~ RitHE
At 1 January 2020 1202061518 9,269 3,300 25,475 1,217 - 39,261
Charge for the year FRXH 2,190 225 3,758 196 - 6,369
Disposals RE = (65) - - - (65)
At 31 December 2020 and ~ #2020%12A318 )

1 January 2021 2021%1A1H 11,459 3,460 29,233 1,413 - 45,565
Charge for the year ERTH 2,403 389 3724 157 - 6,673
Disposals RE - (2,028) (667) (183) = (2,878)
At 31 December 2021 ®2021%12A31A 13,862 1,821 32,290 1,387 - 49,360
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2021 ®2021%12A31A 32,206 21 25,418 535 29,924 88,804
At 31 December 2020 120204124318 34,241 995 23,696 430 353 59,715

As at 31 December 2021, the buildings of approximately
RMB24,127,000 (2020: nil) were pledged to bank for bills

payables.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. EFREEE

Z2021F12H31HIFFE

Land use
rights
= b 5 AR A
RMB’000
ARBF T
Cost 24N
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H 19,550
Addition for the year (note) REERE (M) 10,763
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and 2020%F12H31H 20211818 &
31 December 2021 2021%12H31H 30,313
Accumulated depreciation I HE
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H 2,369
Charge for the year FRNEH 450
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R2020F12H31H &2021F1A1H 2,819
Charge for the year FRNEH 606
At 31 December 2021 #2021%F12831H 3,425
Net carrying amount BREFE
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12831H 26,888

At 31 December 2020

M2020%12A31H

27,494

The right-of-use assets are land use rights located in the
PRC which are under medium lease. Additional lease
contract is entered into for fixed term of 50 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB16,399,000
(2020: nil) was pledged to bank for the Group’s bills
payables.

note: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new
leases entered.

A E AN B AR BB OR
B T (E R M NEES DM E
EHIR R50% - HE F IR BRI &£ 2%
B WA TR R AR - R E
EHEFHEAEIIRERR 2K
B AKREEBANZERENETE
BHRFRBIIT 2 HIR o

MR2021F12 8318 BREELH AR
16,399,0007T (20204 « &) K R4
BEDHRAEERNEMNZHIRIET
$R1T°

M ZeRBREEMI L MEEmE
EZEREEE-

RENKERERAE —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—EBE Q[ 2=
2021
20214
RMB'000
ARBF T

At the beginning of the year R EH) -

Cost of investment REEE QB2 IR E KA 3,000

Share of result DIEEE (36)

At the end of the year RER 2,964

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the RRERE AEBBE QAR NFS

reporting period is as follow: N

Attributable
equity interest
and voting
Place and date of Registered/ rights held by Principal
Name of Company incorporation paid up capital the Group activities
AEEFEN
& AR 2 3 B aEmER BaRER
NCIEE X B BREX RERE FEXEK
2021
20214

AT RER KR The PRC, RMB15,000,000 20% Manufacturing
BEEREEAT 31 December 2020 of faux leather
Zhejiang Ketian Water chemicals
Technology Co., Ltd*

("Ketian Water")

AT RER KM RHE HE - AR BEATE
BREERTA 20209 12A31H 15,000,0007T L2m
(TRERAKMED)

* English name is for identification purpose only. * B LIEE MR-

Ketian Water is an associate of Zhejiang Sunlight Material RERIKME BT IREFMERI AR

Technology Co., Ltd. and capital injections was completed NENEE AT BSXIEERERNT

during the year. X o

1 3 O SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 19. R—EHE QAT 2R ()
B AT 2 BISEREE

Summarised financial information of the associate:
As at

31 December

2021

20215

12A31H

RMB'000

AREEFIT

Current assets mENEE 1,656

Non-current assets FERFHEE 13,252

Current liabilities mEEE

~

Year ended
31 December
2021
BZE2021F
12H31H
IEFE
RMB'000
AR®ET T

Revenue WA -
Loss for the year REFEIE (179)
Total comprehensive loss for the year NEERHEEEERE (179)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial J:};Hﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁi ,\E/\ B HRE
information to the carrying amount of the interest in RRERNEE NSRBI EN S
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial BE :

statements:

As at

31 December
2021
20214
12H31H
RMB’000
AR®ET T

Net assets of the associate Bt &N R E B S E 14,821

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in 7%= [E| {58 < A & I AE Lt Bl

the associate 20%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the ZNEE B4 A RIER M EREE

associate 2,964

FERBEZERARAT —B-—F£§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE2021F12H31H IFFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. FE

As at 31 December
M12H831H

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Raw materials Exr 19,191 10,317
Work in progress ER G 1,270 1,157
Finished goods BIRK T 10,815 6,520
31,276 17,994

As at 31 December 2021, the net realisable value of
finished goods are above the carrying amount. As a
result, no write-down (2020: a reversal of write-down of
RMB125,000) has been recognised and included in cost
of sales during the current year.

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

M2021F12 A31H » &k gh 2 A £418
FEHSNEEE B I 2 #UR
(20204 : %[O #m A K #125,000
TL) BRI AT ARFEHEKA

21. EZRBURERERERS

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T T
Trade receivables B SRR TE 85,347 52,983
Less: provision for impairment B BB (2,970) (2,564)
82,377 50,419
Bills receivables U =% 7,980 19,065
Total trade and bills receivables — net 488 5 FEURIE N FEUWNESS — F5E 90,357 69,484

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

2021 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021
21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date:

REMBHRRME

Z2021F12H31HIFFE

. BEZRRRERERERE &)

B HRWFIRREZARN 270 ARER
DT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARET T

Within 30 days 30K 27,144 16,395
31 to 90 days 31E90K 36,562 20,974
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 14,589 9,086
181 to 365 days 181%F365K% 5,669 3,973
Over 1 year BiE1F 1,383 2,555
85,347 52,983

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits for the customer. Credit limits attributed
to customers and credit term granted to customers are
reviewed annually. In determining the recoverability of
the trade receivables, the Group monitors any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables throughout the
reporting period.

The Group generally allows an average credit period
range from 30 to 120 days to its customers. During the
reporting period, the Group has applied the simplified
approach to providing allowance for ECLs prescribed by
IFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables at each reporting
date. To measure the ECLs, the trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. ECLs are estimated based on
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic condition
and forward-looking information. The assessment on
ECL are set out in Note 5(b) to consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all bills receivables
are with a maturity period of less than 6 months.

REBEMEEFETF A AEEFEE
EEFHEEERREBEERFPNEER
BE-AKESFRIGTEENE
EREMBETEPNEESR REE
B 5 I Wk IR H R UL B - AR ER 8
EREZRIGERBERSEHAN
EREEERES-

AEE-—RETERFNTHEER
NF30E 120K - NI EHA - AEE
EERBLE AR HREERE
ORI TERRE BB EE
HEARFREREABHAEE SR
WHRIBFEREHEREEEERE-
ATTEEBHEEEE BHEKFIE
ERIEERAEE R R H X
BETHH AR EESEBRBEERS
BEEBERGHT UREBEEEARS
MR & &k — BB R ATREEE R
ERAE - EEEBEEEENT G
R AR A B SR K MIFES (D) ©

20214 M2020%F12H31H & &
BUEIMATAE ZENE BERE LR
61E A °

RENKERERAE —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

134

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EEEWFENEWRELRE &)

7R 8 T L 55 L 4
T -

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®ET T

At the beginning of the year REY] 2,564 209
Provision for impairment REREE 478 7 EEE
Written-off EE s (72) -
At the end of the year RER 2,970 2,564

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with
a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB136,428,000
(2020: RMB112,165,000). The Derecognised Bills had
a maturity of one to six months at the end of the
reporting period. In accordance with the applicable laws
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion
of the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group'’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report

FERIBANCEHETMEE

MR2021F12A8318 - REBRHEE T
HEBEEFREREAARK136,428
F £(2020%F : AR ¥112,165F L)
EETRBEAMIBITES A TRRE
BIRIEERZE ) UEBEMNZ
SHEFHE SEMNRIB - RIEER
ZENREPEEA—Z2NEARE
Hi- iRIBP BB AR (WERRER
TEY IRIEREZEENIFEAS
ERAEEREER((FELH])-
BERAE AEBCEBERBRILE
REBEM B AN R & B3R o Al -
HERIERRIIBREZENAEE
EENARESE S RN HE - AEE
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

RECEIVABLES

22. ENRIE - REREABBUR

5

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTIT

Current B
Other receivables, net of allowance Hib e ERIE - HIGTEEAE &

of ECL EERE 54 4
Prepayment B IE 2,399 3,538

2,453 3,542

Non-current IR ED
Prepayment for property, plant Y% - R E MR 2 TR IR

and equipment - 5,752

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

23. BNV EFAEENERHEE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Listed securities ETES

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — R&E Eh 2 BAES

The listed equity securities are classified as current as
the management expects to realise these financial assets
within twelve months after the reporting period. The
listed equity securities are stated at fair values which are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

36,262 =

HREEBEPNREHMR T @A
HOBRB/REY  LTRAFRIZLE
MSHREEEZ A FETIAR-

rENFZERERAT —2--f8% |35
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

(a)

B ZE2021F12A31HIEFE
24 RERRSEBYREIEFR

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS TEX
Cash and cash equivalents () RERBELEEY
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEES 28,447 79,641

(b)

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Cash at banks deposit earn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, bank balances
and cash of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB19,732,000 and
RMB46,137,000 respectively. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency in the PRC and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. For the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in
RMB located in Hong Kong are not subject to the
foreign exchange control.

Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits of the
Group of approximately RMB5,278,000 (2020: nil)
are pledged as collateral for issuing bills (Note 25).

2021 Annual Report

(b)

RITERRERBEEHRITHER
R 127 B | R ERERA B, o

M20214F %20204E12 8318 @ K
EBUAREEZRITEB R
RE D R4 AR #19,732,0007T
¥ AR #46,137,0007T° A R ¥
R ERLIRHER
) AR (B 3% SN B 78 38 <7 R B BT
Il TE B9 IINE B B BRI R OE AR o AR
EENEBUARKTENR S
IR & EEBWHBBZINEE IR
PR o

BIEFRITER

R2021F 128318 A& B 4
A R #5,278,0007T (20204 :
B|OMIRITERDER ERE
TEBRNOER @ (FEE25).



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
The table below details the cash flows and
non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities. Except as disclosed below,
there were no non-cash changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities.

RE M BRRME

B E2021F 12831 H IFFZE

24. B RREEE/YREEFE

TR GE)
() MEFDELENREBEHR

TRHAVAREERETBEL
BENRERERFERSEY-
BRI XEEIN AEEREE
BELNAETEFRSED -

Amounts
Bank Other due to
borrowings  borrowing shareholders Total
RTEE HibeE EARRFNE #t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETT ARETT ARETT AR%®TR
At 1 January 2020 ©®2020F1 418 11,000 10,727 1,378 23,105
Change from financing cash ~ BIEEI &2 -
flows:
Interest paid BERFE (334) (152) = (486)
Repayment of bank and BRFITRAMEE
other borrowings (11,000) (10,678) - (21,678)
(11,334) (10,830) - (22,164)
Other changes: Hiv 28 :
Exchange adjustments RS - (49) 7 (42)
Interest expense R 334 152 - 486
Capitalisation of shareholders' FRREZE R
loan - = (1,385) (1,385)
334 103 (1,378) (941)
At 31 December 2020, 720204124318 »
1 January 2021 and 201F1A1B R
31 December 2021 2021F 1278318 - - - -
RrENFERERAT —2-—s48 |37/



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25.

BEZRNIRERENRE

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Trade payables B SN RIR 20,418 19,946
Bills payables i ANEE 17,593 -
38,011 19,946

The average credit period from suppliers is up to 30 to
90 days. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period:

HERERHNFEEERZRA30E
90K - N E MR E 5 BN RIB LT
SRH2IIMERERS T

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR%T T ARBT T
Within 30 days 30K 13,655 12,571
31 to 90 days 31290K 6,098 6,625
91 to 180 days 912180k 511 255
181 to 365 days 1812365k 16 416
Over 1 year HBid1F 138 79
20,418 19,946

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all bills payables are
with a maturity period of less than 6 months.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

B E2021F 12831 H IFFZE

26. Hitt BN RERETE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®EF T
Accrued staff costs JEEH 8 TR 1,057 1,035
Accrued expenses and other payables  FExt5 sk K E fih B~ 2018 3,498 4,426
Contract liabilities (note (a)) BB EME®Q)) 297 232
4,852 5,693

note:

(a)

Contract liabilities related to sales of faux leather
chemicals contracts. All contracts are for periods within
one year. Entire amount of the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year was recognised as revenue
during the year 31 December 2021.

As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted
approximately to RMB156,000.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amounts of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group received certain amount from customers
as deposits before the sales of faux leather chemicals
contracts are completed.

EHEBEBESRATELLEREES
e MARKHEREAB—FRN - F1
AHBEHRENEZBSEIRER
2021128318 IEFERER B
)\o

M2020F1A1E - AHEBEBEESRA
# AR #156,0007T ©

FEEHAANABEEZBEN
HIERAT

AEERATELBRFESHT
RZAE B &P WEE THREBER
B

27. DEFERRED INCOME 27. IEZEU A
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBFTT
Assets related governments grants B EMBER BN 684 821
FERRKEZERAERAT —ZB-—FF#K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF

27. DEFERRED INCOME (continued) 27. EIEWA (&)
Movement of assets related government grants: BEMBOBTHEBES)
RMB’'000

AR®ETFTT
At 1 January 2020 7202041818 958
Credited to profit or loss ST ABZE (137)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020912 A31H %2021F1 /8 1H 821
Credited to profit or loss T ABZE (137)
At 31 December 2021 720215128318 684
Government grant of approximately RMB1,300,000 was R2017F EWMB T /B ARE
received in 2017 in relation to the subsidy for acquisition 1,300,0007T » Bl B 2= T # 22 a0 B
of certain machinery. B
The carrying amount of deferred income of the Group REBRLEWARNBREERBREEB
analysed for reporting purposes as: DA

As at 31 December

M12H318
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRT ARBTET

Current portion meEnEs s 137 137
Non-current portion EmENE N 547 684
684 821
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 28. BEREEE

29.

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in fRE MR RAERAELERIEE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the EfD RREHBHANES T :
movements during the reporting period are as follows:

Provision of

impairment

WERE

RMB’000

ARETTT

At 1 January 2020 720201 H1H 69
Credited to profit or loss (Note 12) ST ABZE(FEE12) 316
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 202012 A31H &2021F1/81H 385
Credited to profit or loss (Note 12) ST ABZE(FEE12) 60
At 31 December 2021 72021%12A831H 445

Note: B 3T -

As at 31 December 2021, no deferred tax asset has been FA2021E12 8318 » R RBETE BRI &R 3%
recognised in respect of approximately RMB9,963,000 (2020: TR - W Em BB EE 2 R B E
RMB2,630,000) of unused tax losses arising in Hong Kong due B4 A9, 963,0007T (20204 : AR
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such losses may #2,630,0007T ) ERBELERIBEAE 2%
be carried forward indefinitely. 5B O] MR HR 45 6 o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. BBIRFESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the AATIHEEIRESE (52 ]) 5
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and/ ERHAEBEERINELRERZE
or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the BRZEEEM SRR 5B R - %
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants HE A ERKEEBIERNNGE
of the Scheme include any directors and employees of EENEE BEAATLEREA
the Company, including all executive directors of the MBS ITE E o 5T 27202052
Company and its subsidiaries. The Scheme became B1oB 4% BIEBITEEKIEET
effective on 10 February 2020 and, unless otherwise RIS EZBERI10ERGRH -

cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

FERBEZERARAT —B-—F£§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE R HR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12H31H IF FE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BBIRESTE (&)

142

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
option in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their subsidiaries, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
would be determined by the directors. The exercise
price of the share options would be determined by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options, which must
be a business day; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer,
provided that the subscription price shall not be lower
than the nominal value of the shares.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Company did not grant any share options to
directors, employees or other parties. There were no
outstanding share options as at 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12H31H IF F/Z

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. IRA

Details of movements of share capital of the Company RABIHRAEBFBLT -
are as follows:

Number Share
of shares Capital
R&HEE g 2
RMB’000
ARBTTT
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2020, ordinary share of 7202051 818 - §REE
US$0.001 each 0.0013E T HY I 3@ A% 1,000,000,000 6,700
Share subdivision (Note (a)) ARAD 7 48 (M9 5E(a)) 1,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2020, 720205128318 *
1 January 2021 and 20211818 %2021
31 December 2021, 128318 BREE
ordinary share of US$0.0005 each  0.00053% Jt Y & i@ i% 2,000,000,000 6,700
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR
At 1 January 2020, ordinary share 20201 A1H - §REE
of US$0.001 each 0.0013TTH) & AR 100,000,000 670
Share subdivision (Note (a)) R 48 (B sE(@)) 100,000,000 -
Capitalisation issue (Note (b)) B AR 31T (K 5E(b)) 550,000,000 1,944
Issue of new shares under Global BIE 2Bk & 31T I
Offering (Note (c)) (FaE()) 250,000,000 883
At 31 December 2020 and 202012 A31H &R20214F
1 January 2021, ordinary share 1HA18  BRHE{E0.00053% T
of US$0.0005 each B Em AR 1,000,000,000 3,497
Placing new shares (Note (d)) Aic & 3 A% (B 5E(d)) 200,000,000 655
At 31 December 2021, ordinary R2021F12A318 > SREE
share of US$0.0005 each 0.0005% T EER 1,200,000,000 4,152

rENFZERERAT —2--f58% |43
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

31.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

On 10 February 2020, all the issued and unissued shares
of the Company with par value of US$0.001 each share
was subdivided into two shares of US$0.0005 each.
Accordingly, following the completion of the subdivision,
the authorised share capital became US$1,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of par value of
US$0.0005 each, each ranking pari passu with one
another in all respects.

Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the
shareholders of the Company on 10 February 2020, the
directors of the Company were authorised to capitalise
an amount of US$275,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company and applied in
paying up in full at par a total of 550,000,000 shares for
allotment and issue to the shareholders of the Company.

The Company was successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange on 12 March 2020 by way of the Global
Offering of 25,000,000 public offer share and
225,000,000 placing shares respectively at the offer price
of HK$0.52 per share.

On 9 April 2021, 200,000,000 new shares were alloted
and issued by the Company and placed to not less
than six independent placees at the placing price of
HK$0.240 per placing share, which generated net
proceeds of approximately HK$46,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB38,959,000).

RESERVES
(@) The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

2021 Annual Report

HZE2021F12H31HIFFE

30. RA (&)

31.

GEE

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

K202062 108 ' AR R BREE
0.001ETT 2B BITRAET
f& 17 B 3 48 & M A% & A 1 {50.0005
ETTH R ALt - IR TEAKE
YA TE B% K& 51,000,000 T80 5 A
2,000,000,0004% & fR [ {E0.00053
TR (Rt 2 BREAE T E=Z
BRZEMAL) o

RIEAR R A2 B8 AR R 720202 A
IOHBBENEAAZER  ARAE
EREEBARARMDEERF
275,000 JT ) #E IR R & A1k -
W RZABELREERHEES H
550,000,0008% A% 1 &Y A% 5% + DA B 3%
KBTI TARRRIRE

BRIEBEESEFRS2E T E2IX
2% £25,000,0000% A B2 & 1D &
225,000,000 F2 & B 13 - 2" A A
120203 B12H B Ih TE B R AT £
M °

R2021F4 8908 - A~ A 7) Bf 3% & 2%
£7200,000,0000% ¥ B 17 W = i & (&
FIRAL & M 190.240/8 Th & F 14
RAZBBILARA  EEXMBRE
78 #946,500,00058 7T (& R A
R #38,959F 7T ) °

it

(a)

KEH
AEERBEEEAEEN S
SERARD 2 IINGAERE
-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEF/E
31. RESERVES (continued) 31. RE#E)
(b) The Company (b) &AF
Share Exchange Accumulated Total
premium reserve losses equity
R 5E B 5 e Rt ER BRER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%ETE ARETR
At 1 January 2020 ©®2020F1 418 35,665 (103) (11,764) 23,798
Loss for the year EREIE = = (46,475) (46,475)
Other comprehensive income  ERE M2 EHRA

for the year - 103 - 103
Total comprehensive income/  ERZEUE /(ER)

(loss) for the year ek - 103 (46,475) (46,372)
Capitalisation issue BT (1,944) = = (1,944)
Issue of shares pursuant to B 2R ERITR D

Global offering 116,906 - - 116,906
Transaction costs attributable — 1R#&E 2 EREE #1710

to issue to shares under R A

Global offering (22,211) = = (22,211)
At 31 December 2020 and #2020 12A31H K

1 January 2021 20211 41RH 128,416 - (58,239) 70,177
Loss for the year FREE - - (16,066) (16,066)
Other comprehensive loss FREMEEERE

for the year - (602) - (602)
Total comprehensive loss FREAFBLE

for the year - (602) (16,066) (16,668)
Issue of shares under placing ~ RiEELEEITRN 39,561 - = 39,561
Transaction costs attributable to AR E 31T (R

issue to shares under placing {5 S A (1,257) - - (1,257)
At 31 December 2021 M2021%12AH31H 166,720 (602) (74,305) 91,813

(c)

Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

() fREzDE

REEFSHEERRE AAFH
P 334 18RI AR IR I A SR 32 A+ 93 Tk
KA EZBERER XN DR
HREZ BHIR - NABIAREHN
RBEEREEREP RN GE

7 o

RERKZRERAAE

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
31. RESERVES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

HZE2021F12H31HIFFE

(c) Distributability of reserves (continued)

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB92,415,000 (2020: RMB70,177,000).

THE COMPANY

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

31. @)
(0 fEZEM)

AR EFR2021F12A318 2 7]
HORFHEESEAARK
92,415F 7T(20204F : A R ¥
70,1777 )

32. XA FHBMREK

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo aE ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R—ZKH B AR E 36,000 36,000
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 13038 & H ftb & U 7008 161 2,063
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU BT B A B 7R IA 19,046 22,465
Financial assets at FVTPL BNV ETABENSR
BE 36,262 -
Bank balances and cash WITESHREE S 8,055 20,323
63,524 44,851
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HE I E R ETE R 768 880
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A B IA 2,791 6,297
3,559 7,177
Net current assets REBEEFRE 59,965 37,674
Total assets less HEERREARE
current liabilities 95,965 73,674
Net assets EEFE 95,965 73,674
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital R& 2 30 4,152 3,497
Reserves HE 31(b) 91,813 70,177
95,965 73,674

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;Z2021F12H31H IF F/E

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transaction
balances with its related parties during the reporting
period:

(a) Recurring transaction

33. EXBEEFIRS

RGBTSR ERPEMEHMIEES
Hh REBARREHANERBEEF#ET
MR BT :

(a) BREMRS
Year ended 31 December

BZ=12A318LEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Rental expenses to a related party S F—RBEEHNHESHS
— Hanzhou Qiyue Investment — NI B E IR B R

Management Co., Ltd.* (Note) N 5] (M)

* English name is for identification purpose only.

In 2021 and 2020, the Group entered into lease
agreement and supplement lease agreement with
Hangzhou Qiyue Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. for a term commencing on 1 January 2020
and ending on 30 June 2020; and 1 July 2020 and
ending on 31 December 2020 for the lease of the
leased premise (the “Leased Premises”). The Group
further entered into supplement lease agreement
to extend lease term commencing on 1 January
2021 and ending on 30 June 2021; and 1 July 2021
and ending on 31 December 2021 (collectively, the
“Lease Agreement”). The rent payable under the
Lease Agreement was determined with reference to
the prevailing market rent for similar properties at
the same development and in neighbouring areas
at which the Leased Premises are located that the
rent payable under the Lease Agreement is fair and
reasonable and consistent with the market rent for
similar premises in similar locations. The transaction
contemplated under the Lease Agreement is
fully exempt from shareholders’ approval and all
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

365 330

* O REXAREHRBA-

20214 202045 @ A~ & & g1
HAEEWE(FHEYE])HE
MER IS B E R ER AT
EWmzAETEE R HRA
2020F1 A1H # 2202056 A4
308 4 R 20207 A1 £ &
2020F12A31H & R A& H
E—FRIUHAHE R AT
KA H2021F181BEZE
2021568308 1 : K&202147
HA18 # F2021412A318 1t
(B AEmR) BEEAER
HEMZESI2EHREYER
AT R ERIEEAEYERN
ERmSHeET BERERE
HEEMZHEBATAE M
EERFAEMENTIZES —
B-HEHRBBTRETISE
FHEARET ETARRE4AE
R R HBERFTE R ERTE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, E2021F12H31H IEFZE

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES 33. ERBERIRS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Recurring transaction (continued) () REMERS(E)

Note: Hangzhou Qiyue Investment Management Co., Ltd. PHEE: MNEEIREEERBR AR
is a former shareholder of Zhejiang Sunlight which is RALRERRIRER  HH
beneficially owned as to by Mr. Chen Hua. Mr. Chen PRESL A Em AR RESL
Hua is a director and a shareholder of the Company. ERRRNRESRRE -

(b) Compensation of key management (b) FEEEASFMH
personnel
Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31BLFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTET

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R R EYRET

in kind 1,625 1,739
Contributions to retirement RNEFIEEIHER
benefits schemes 72 142
1,697 1,881
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 34, EXREIE
Capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December N5 E 720219 K&20206F12H31H°
2021 and 2020 not provided for in the consolidated AR E M BWMKRPIELHBRENER
financial statements were as follows: EEWT

As at 31 December

®12A318
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Contracted but not provided for BRI 4B R
— Purchase of property, plant —BEYE BEKEE
and equipment 7,213 11,486

1 48 SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report



35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has established the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
in funds which are under the control of independent
trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid
or payable by the Group to the scheme at 5% of each
of the employees’ monthly relevant income capped at
HK$30,000. In addition, the PRC employees employed by
the Group are members of the state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the PRC Government. The
Group is required to contribute at certain percentage of
the eligible employees’ salaries to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is
to make the required contributions under the schemes.
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future obligations.
The total contributions made by the Group to the MPF
Scheme and the PRC retirement benefit schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are RMB2,410,000 (2020:
RMB1,455,000).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, subsequent to 31
December 2021, the following events took place:

On 31 January 2022, the Board proposed to change the
English name of the Company from “Sunlight Technology
Holdings Limited” to “Diwang Industrial Holdings
Limited” and the dual foreign name in Chinese of the
Company from “RERFIZERERAAE" to "HFEEZHE
TREHBR A A", The proposed change of Company name
was approved as a special resolution by the Shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 23 March
2022. For the details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 31 January 2022 and 23 March
2022 and Company’s circular dated 4 March 2022.

35

36.

REMBHRRME

£ 20214F 12 31 H L F &
RIRE R T E

AEBDAREBERERER AT ER
BerrEl([RESsTE ) Zat 8w
BEUBYEAIAEENESEA D
FAFE - RIEBENBRAERKERE
HAREAREEIZZES S H30,000
BLALERHNEBRSTAWRAS%E
S B AT BRI R o o ANEE
ERMFEREEH2INES BHBATE
PHBEREEBRKEBFGE - AEE
ERAEREEBHENE —LHIEE
KEFEFEERHZ U MZERE
FMER ANEERZZRAKENGE
2 —BEEARREBEZTEIELAEN
K 720214 22020512 A31H8 -
I 4 AT AR A R 2R B AR 2 8 Ut
HeHE2021F12A31BIEFEE - K
= E A58 18 & 518 K P BlR (R 1& FI T
SBELE s FRBEBERARARE
2,410,0007C(2020F : A R ¥
1,455,0007T ) °

EERKEE
BrANFRE T BE A SN 2021412 A
318 A TFIEE -

20221 FA3E EEERAENAR
A2 X AR [ Sunlight Technology
Holdings Limited] ¥ 2& 7 [Diwang
Industrial Holdings Limited |- It #% &
BN BB RN EBADRERK
TRBRARIERAFTEEEER
ERAB - BRERALFZEERN
RNRRN2022F3 238 BT 2 ’RR
FRIRE E R R ERFRIRZER
Ko BHFE F2HAAFTBEHA
202241 A318 k2022434230 &
NEARRAR B RAR202263H4H

RENKERERAE —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B SRR A
For the year ended 31 December 2021

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at the date of this report, the Company has direct and
indirect equity interests in the following subsidiaries:

Z20214F12HA31HIFFE

37. B QTS
RARE B ADFRATHEA
TR B RS

Attributable equity
interest and voting
Place and date of Registered/ power held by the Principal
Name of Company incorporation paid up capital Company activities
SMmER/ ARARHEH
RRER B 3L 4 B B B BRRE BlaRERREE TEXH
2021 2020
20214 2020F
Direct:
B
Darkblue Investment Limited the BVI, US$50,000 100% 100% Investment holding
31 January 2019
RERERRADA] RBRARE 50,000 7T 100% 100% REZR
2019F1H31H
Classic Top Investment the BV, US$1 100% - Investment holding
Development Limited 2 December 2021
Classic Top Investment EBRTES E 100% - REER
Development Limited 2021F12A2H
Indirect:
iF::3
HongKong Gorgeous Hong Kong, HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Investment Limited 7 March 2019
BERVRERRAH B 201963470 10,0008 7T 100% 100% REZR
MIREMMHBRBRAR  the PRC, RMB90,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing
Zhejiang Sunlight Material 18 December 2003 and sales of faux
Technology Co., Ltd* leather chemicals
("Zhejiang Sunlight”)
HIREMMERRARAR B 2003F12818R AR® 100% 100% BBERHEALE
(DITARE D 90,000,0007T tBm
Mixmatric Investment Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited 21 June 2021
Mixmatric Investment Holdings &/ 2021%6A21H 1,000,000 7T 100% - REER
Limited
A RBFHEEERAR  the PRC, 12 July 2021 RMB1,000,000 100% - Corporate
(note) management
ABELAEEBERAR HE - 2021674128 AR% 100% - PRER
(Birit) 1,000,0007C

note: Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises under the

PRC law.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e kM E
For the year ended 31 December 2021 # E2021412H31H IF F/Z
38. APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED 38. #itEGEMEREK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved RE MK N2022F3 290 EE
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 EHE R IERET RS o
March 2022.

FENEERERAT —2--258 5]
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Five Year Financial Summary

EIFHMBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #,F2021F12H31H IFF/ZF
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ~ ANEESFAEMKEENEEREER
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the EEMERHEE HENEEZEEUHK
published audited consolidated financial statements is set out WwER)EH T :
below:
RESULTS E 5
Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31HLLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 2020 20195 20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥BTRT ARETr ARETT AR%®Tx ARET:k
Revenue A 233,945 134,441 182,681 167,307 157,641
(Loss)/profit before taxation B Al (B#E) /&7 (1,476) (2,788) 28,976 35,307 38,486
Income tax expenses Fri5 B X (1,124) (369) (4,852) (4,517) (3,536)
(Loss)/profit for the year EN(BE) /S #F (2,600) (3,157) 24,124 30,790 34,950
Total comprehensive FR2E(B8) /Wi
(loss)/income for the year k] (6,731) (3,918) 24,003 30,790 34,950
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
As at 31 December
RW12831H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 2020F 20194 20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETE ARETT ARETRE ARETR
Total assets BEE 313,174 264,007 205,671 175,791 197,447
Total liabilities BefE (43,595) (26,656) (61,365) (48,623) (50,669)
Total equity B 269,579 237,351 144,306 127,168 146,778

The summary above does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.
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